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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Direcrors and Stockholders
GMA Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries
GMA Network Center

Timog Avenue comer EDSA

Quezon City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GMA Nerwork, Inc. and Subsidiaries

{the Group). which comprise the consoiidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2021
and 2020, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. consolidated statements of changes
1t equity and consolidated statements of cash: flows for each of the three vears in the period ended
December 31, 2021, and notes to the consolidated financial statements. including 2 summary of
significant accounting policies.

In cur opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for each of the three years in the pericd ended
December 31, 2021 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards arve further described in the 4uditor s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines {(Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requiremnents that are reievan! to our audit of the consolidated financial
slaternents n the Philippines, and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide & basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our prefessional judgment. were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial staternents as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereot. and we do not provide a separate opimon on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter 1s provided in that context,



We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statemenis section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed 1o respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below. provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consohidated financial statements.

(1} Revenue Recognition

The Group derives a significant portion of its revenue from advertising, which represents 94% of the
consolidated revenue for the vear ended December 31, 2021. Proper recognition of revenue from
advertising 1s significant to our audit given the large volume of transactions processed daily and the
highly automated airtime revenue process with multiple information technology (IT) interfaces from
initiation to reporting. Further, there are different rates applicable depending on the time slot when the
advertisements are aired which are adjusted by discounts granted by the Group on a case-by-case basis as
indicated in the telecust orders. Lastlv, there are variations in the timing of billings which are made
depending on when the advertisements are ared.

Refer to Note 22 of the consolidated financial statements for the disclosure on details about the Group's
TeVenues.

Audit Response

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s advertising revenue process, lesfed the relevant internal
conirels and involved our mtemnal specialist in testing the revenue-related T controls. In addition, we
selected samples of biliing statements and performed re-computation. This was done by comparing the
rates applied to the bifling staternents against the rates on the telecast orders and the billable airtime
against the certificates of performance generated when the advertisements were aired. We also tested
transactions taking place one month before and after vear-end to check the timing of the recognition of
the sample adverfising revenues.

(2) Adeguacy of Allowance for Expected Credit Losses on Trade Receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach in calculating expected credit losses (ECL) on trade
receivables. Under this approach. the Group establishes a provision mairix that is based on its historical
credil loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking factors specific 10 the debtors and the economic
environment. Allowance for ECL and the provision for ECL as of and for the vear ended December 31,
2021 amounted to 909,10 million and #142.58 milhon, respectivelv. The use of ECL model is
significant to our audit as it involves the exercise of significant management judgment. Kev areas of
judgment include: segmenting the Group’s credit sk exposures; defining default; determining
assamptions to be used n the ECL model such as timing and amounts of expected net recoveries from
defaulied accounts: and incorporating forward-looking information ¢called overlays), including the
impact of the coronavirus pandemic. in calculating ECL.

Refer to Note 7 of the consolidated finaneial statements for the disclosure on the details of the allowance
for credit losses using the ECL model.



Audit response

We obtained an understanding of the methodology used for the Group's trade receivables and assessed
whether this considered the requirements of PFRS 9. Financial Instruments.

We {a) assessed the Group's segmentation of its credit rnisk exposure based on homogeneiry of credit risk
charactenstics; (b) tested the definition of defanit against nstorical analysis of accounts and credit risk
management policies and practices in place, (¢} tested historical loss rates by inspecting historical
recoveries and write-offs; (d) checked the classification of outstanding exposures to their corresponding
aging buckets; and () reviewed management's consideration of forward-looking infosmation. including
the 1mpact of the coronavirus pandemic in the calculation of ECL.

Further, we checked the data used in the ECL model. such as the historical aging analvsis and default and
recovery data, by reconciling data from source system reports. We also reconciled sample invoices to the
ioss allowance analvsis/moedels and financial reporting systems, To the extent that the loss allowance
analvsis 18 based on credit exposures that have been disaggregated into subsets with similar risk
characteristics, we traced or re-performed the disaggregation from source systems fo the loss allowance
analysis. We also assessed the assumptions used where there are missing or insufficient data.

We recalculated impairment provisions on a sample basis.
Other information

Management 1s responsible for the other mformation. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form: 20-15 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Amawval Report
for the year ended December 31. 2021 but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereen, The SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and
Annual Report for the vear ended December 31, 2021 are expected to be made available 1o us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opiion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we wiil not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial siatements. our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when 1t becomes available and. in doing so, consider whether the other
informanon 1s materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audis. or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Gevernance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements m accordance with PFRSs. and for such internal control as management detenmines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidazed financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsibie for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and

using the going concern basts of accounting unless management either intends fo liguidate the Group or 10

cease operations, or has no realistic aliernative but 1o do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Aunditor’s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Censolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance. but is not & guarantee that an

audit copducied in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matenial if. individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audin. We also:

»  Identify and assess the risks of materzal misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and
obtain audit evidence that ts sufficient and appropriate to provide a basts for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error.
as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of mternal control relevant to the audir in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's miernal control.

e Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accouniing
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and.
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertamry exists related to events or
condrtions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability {o continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required o draw atfention in our anditor's
report to the related disclosures m the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up (o
the date of our audirtor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group o cease
to continue as a going concem.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolhidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consohdated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinien on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significam deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communtcate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disciosure about the matier or when, in extremelv rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicased i our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting ir this independent auditor’s repori is Belinda T. Beng Hui,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Belinda T. Beng Hw
Partner
CPA Certificate No, 88823
Tax tdentification No. 153-978-243
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 23, 2021, valid uniil April 15, 2024
SEC Parmer Accreditation No. 88823-8EC (Group A)

Vaiid to cover awdit of 2021 1o 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
SEC Firm Accreditation No. 0001-8EC {(Group A)

Vahd to cover audit of 2021 1o 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Accreditation No, 08-001998-078-2020. December 3, 2020, valid until December 2, 2023
PTR No. 8853472, January 3, 2022, Makati Citv

March 25, 2022



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
GMA Network, Inc, and Subsidiaries

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GMA Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(the Group), which comprise the conselidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2021
and 2020, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidared statements of changes
1 equity and consolidated staternents of cash flows for each of the three vears in the period ended
December 31. 2021, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

[n our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairlv, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for each of the three vears in the period ended
December 31, 2021 1n accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audin
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines {Code of Ethics}
together with the ethical requirements that are refevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basts for our opinion.

Kev Aundit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional jodgment, were of most significance in our
audii of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.  These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below. our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.



We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matiers.
Accordingly. our audit included the performance of precedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consohidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

{3} Revenue Recognition

The Group derives a significant portion of its revenue from advertising, which represents 94% of the
consolidated revenue for the vear ended December 31, 2021. Proper recognition of revenue from
adverrising is significant to our audit given the large volume of wansactions processed daily and the
highly automated airfime revenue process with multiple information technology (1T) interfaces from
Initiation to reporting. Further, there are different rates applicable depending on the time siot when the
advertisements are alred which are adjusted by discounts granted by the Group on & case-by-case basis as
indicated in the telecast orders. Lastly, there are vanations i the timing of billings which are made
depending on when the advertisements are aired,

Refer to Note 22 of the consolidated financial statements for the disclosure on details about the Group's
revenues.

Audit Response

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s advertising revenue process, tesied the relevant internal
controls and invelved our internal specialist in testing the revenue-related I'T controls. In addition, we
selected samples of billing staternents and performed re-computation, This was done by comparing the
rates applied to the billing statements against the rates on the telecast orders and the billable airtime
agamst the certificates of performance generated when the adveriisements were aived. We also tested
transactions taking place one month before and after year-end to check the timing of the recognition of
the sample advertising revenues.

(4) Adeguacy of Allowance for Expected Credit Losses on Trade Recelvables

The Group appiies the simplified approach m calculating expected credit losses (FECLY on trade
receivables. Under this approach, the Group establishes a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit ioss experience and adjusted for forward-looking factors specific fo the debtors and the economic
environment. Allowance for ECL and the provision for ECL as of and for the vear ended December 31,
2021 amounted 1o B909.10 million and R142 38 millkion, respectively. The use of ECL model 1s
significant to our audit as it involves the exercise of significant management judgment. Key areas of
judgment include: segmenting the Group's credit risk exposures; defining default; determining
assumptons to be used 1n the ECL model such as timing and amounts of expected net recoveries from
defaulted accounts; and mcorporating forward-Jooking information (called overlays)., including the
impact of the coronavirus pandemic, in calculating ECL.

Refer to Note 7 of the consolidated financal statements for the disclosure on the details of the allowance
for credit losses using the ECL model.
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Audit response

We obtained an understanding of the methodology used for the Group’s trade receivables and assessed
whether this considered the requirements of PFRS 9, Financial Instrumenis.

We (a) assessed the Group's segmentation of its credit risk exposure based on homogeneity of credit risk
characteristics; {b) tested the definition of default against historical analysis of accounts and credit risk
management policies and practices in place, (c) tested historical loss rates by inspecting historical
recoveries and write-offs: (d) checked the ciassificarion of outstanding exposures to their corresponding
aging buckets; and (e) reviewed management’s consideration of forward-looking mformation, including
the impact of the coronavirus pandemic i the calculation of ECL.

Further, we checked the data used in the ECL. model. such as the histoneal aging analysis and default and
recovery data, by reconciling data from source system reports. We also reconciled sampile invoices to the
joss allowance analyvsis/models and financial reporting systems. To the exient that the loss allowance
analysis is based on credit exposures that have been disaggregated into subsets with similar risk
characteristics, we traced or re-performed the disaggregation from source systems to the loss allowance
analysis. We also assessed the assumptions used where there are missing or insufficient data.

We recalculated impairment provisions on a sampie basis.
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-IS (Defimtive Informanon Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
for the year ended December 31. 2021 but does not inciude the consolidated financiai statements and our
anditor’s report thereon. The SEC Form 20-1S (Definitive Information Statement). SEC Form 17-A and
Annual Report for the year ended December 31. 202} are expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Orur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will nos
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the consohidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when 1t becomes available and. in doing so, consider whether the other
information 1s materially inconsistent with the conselidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Conselidated
Financial Statements

Management 1s responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.



In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management either intends to liguidare the Group or o
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with govemance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Anditor’s Respoensibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated firancial statements as a
whoie are free from maierial misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinior. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted m accordance with PSAs will always desect a material misstatement when 1t exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identifv and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
whether due te fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinmion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resultng from fraud 1s higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve colluston. forgery, intennonal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ Obrain an undersianding of internal control relevant to the audit 1n order to design andit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
etiectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

s Evaluate the appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

= (Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basts of accounting and.
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
we conclude that a material uncertamty exists, we are required 1o draw atiention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up o
the date of our auditor’s report. However. future evenis or conditions may cause the Group 1o cease
L0 CONHITIUE 3% & YOIE CONCern.

* [valuate the overall presentation, srructure and content of the consolidated financial statements.
including the disclosures. and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underiving
transactions and events in a manner that achieves {air presentation.



¢ (Obtamn sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opimon on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including anyv significant deficiencies in internal
control that we dentify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we deiermine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the carrent period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report uniess law or
regulation prectudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances. we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent audiior’s report is Belinda T. Beng Hui.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Belinda T. Beng Hui
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 88823
Tax Identification No. 153-978-243
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid uniil Apnil 15, 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation No. 88823-SEC (Group A)

Valid to cover audit of 2021 1o 2023 financial statements of 8EC covered institutions
SEC Fim Acereditation No. 0001-SEC (Group A}

Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered instdtutions
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-078-2020. December 3, 2020, valid until December 2. 2023
PTR No. 8833472, January 3, 2022, Makau City

March 23, 2022



INDEPENDENT AUBITOR’S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Beard of Directors and Stockholders
GMA Network, Inc. and Subsidianes
GMA Network Center

Timog Avenue commer EDSA

Quezon City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. the consolidated financial
statements of GMA Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Group) as at Decemnber 31, 2021 and 2020, and
for each of the three vears i the period ended December 31, 2021, and have issued our report thereon
dated March 25, 2022, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The schedules listed in the Index to the Consolidated
Finaneial Statements ané Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the Group’s management,
These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with the Revised Securities Regulation Code
Rule 68, and are not patt of the basic consolidated financial statements. These schedules have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic consolidated financial statements
and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the information required to be set forth therein in
relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Belinda T. Beng Hw
Partner
CPA Certificate No, 88823
Tax identification No. 153-978.243
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation Ne. 88823-8EC {Group A}

Valid 10 cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered insttutions
SEC Firm Accreditation No. 0001-8EC {(Group A)

Valid to cover audit of 2021 10 2025 financial statements of SEC covered mstitutions
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-078-2020, December 3, 2020, vaiid untl December 2, 2023
PTR No. 8853472, January 3. 2022, Makati City

March 25, 2022



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

The Board of Directors and Stockhoiders
GMA Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries
GMA Network Center

Timog Avenue corner EDSA

Quezon City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. the consolidated financial
staternents of GMA Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries {the Group) as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021, and have issued our report thereon
dated March 25, 2022, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The Supplementary Schedule on Financial Soundness
Indicators, including their definitions, formulas, calculation, and their appropriateness or usefulness fo the
intended users. are the responsibility of the Group's management. These financial souadness indicators
are not measures of operating performance defined by Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS)
and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other companies. This schedule is
presented for the purpose of complying with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 issued by
the Securities and Exchange Commussion, and 1s not a required part of the basic consolidated financial
statements prepared in accordance with PFRS. The components of these financial soundness indicators
have been traced to the Group's consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 and
for each of the three vears in the period ended December 31, 2021 and no material exceptions were nozed.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Belinda T. Beng Huw
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 88823
Tax ldentificarion No, 153-978-243
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid unul April 15, 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation No. 88823-8EC (Group A)

Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2023 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
SEC Firm Accreditation No. Q001-SEC (Group A)

Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-078-2020, December 3, 2020, valid until December 2. 2023
PTR No. 8833472, January 3, 2022, Makan City

March 25, 2022



GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

2021 2020
ASKETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6, 31 and 32) P4.793,566,154 P3.214.817.264
Trade and other receivables (Notes 7, 21, 31 and 32} 7.784.545,0006 10.466.337.693
Program and other rights (Note 8) 764,595,163 750,736,220
Inventonies (Note 9) 1,137,425,573 237.054.9G7
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (Note 103 1.857.736,245 1.777.260.399

Total Current Assets 16.337.871.141 16.446.406 494
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment:

At cost (Note 13) 2,985,503,5352 2.588.113.704

At revalued amounts {Notes 14 and 32} 1.945.297.014 2,803.196.184
Right-of-use assets (Note 28) 123,923,786 8O.268.276
Financial assets at fair valoe through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

(Notes 11, 31 and 32) 116,711,276 192,132,088
Investments and advances {Notes 12 and 21) 184,701,625 184.524 315
Program and other rights - net of current portion (Note 8) 240,982,378 162.229.776
Investment properties (Nofes 13 and 32) 33487447 34.869.834
Deferred rax assess - net (Note 29 843,583,375 1172719952
Other noncurrent assets (Notes 16, 31 and 32 263,574,079 235 808 847

Total Noncurrent Assets 7.737.853,932 7492.862.976
TOTAL ASSETS B24075, 728073 $23.0316.266.470
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade payables and other current Hahilities (Notes 17,371 and 32) 82.697.163.970 P2 077.884.927
Short-term loans (Notes 18, 31 and 32) 739 485300 T20.343.000
{ncome tax pavabie 1.075,750,592 1.776.890.733
Current portion of lease Labilities (Notes 28, 31 and 32) 17.475,682 10,485 295
Current portion of obligations for program and other rights

{Notes 19, 31 and 32} 212.578.686 176,182,128
Dividends pavable (Notes 20, 31 and 323 30,589,204 19.804 437

Total Current Liabilities 4.782.043.634 3681682320
Noncurrent Liabilities
Pension lability (Note 27) 4,169,686,751 4915125689
Other long-term emplovee benefits {Note 27} 393,749,236 349702454
Lease jtabilitics - net of current portion (Notes 28, 31 and 32) 141,910,220 66,370,777
Dismantling provision (Note 28) 46,097,449 44.975.410
Obligations for program and other rights - net of current portion

{Notes 19, 31 and 32} 11.237.556 -

Total Nencurrent Liabilities 4.722.681,206 3.376.172.330

Total Liabilities 9.504.724.840 11,057,854 850

(Forwardi



December 31

2021 2020
Equity
Capital stock (Note 203 B4.864.692.000 P4.864.692.000
Additonal paid-in capital 1,680,556.623 i.650.033.196
Revaluation imcrement on land - net of tax (Note 143 1.832.684,129 L710.505,188
Remeasurement loss on retirement plans - net of tax (Note 27) {(2,018.678,742) {2.5396,957.048)
Net unrealized logs on financial assers at FVOCT - net of tax (Note 11} (117,945,532) (47,709,492
Retained earnings (Note 20) 8,222.610,450 7.253.764.003
Treasury stocks {Note 203 - {28483, 171
Underlying shares of the acquired Philippine Deposit Receipts (Note 20} - (5.790.016)
Total equity atiributable to equity holders of the Parent Company 14,469.918,928 12.809.036.,730
Non-controlling interests {Note 23 101,081,305 72.357 870
Total Equity 14.571.000,233 12,881.414,620
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY B24.075,725,073 £23.039,269 470

See accompanying Notes 1o Consolidaied Financial Sratemenis




GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

221 2020 2019

REVENUES {Note 22) B22,450.323.397 P19.333 895538 P16.493432.212

PRODUCTION COSTS (Note 23) 4,876.549.005 3452138339 6.435.153.765

COST OF SALES (Nowe 9 418,141,643 479.417.099 —

GROSS PROFIT 17.155.632.749 15.404,340.080 10.058.008 447
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

{Nore 24} 7.260,529.700 6,847 818,011 6.323.456.794

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) - NET
Foreign cutrency exchange gain (loss) (Note 18)

(51.861.281)

(47,023,770

(34892931
(35

Interest expense (Notes 18 and 2§) {48,692.493) (26,543,123 505,345
Interest income (Note 6% 16,235,317 3715413 22.806,786
Equity in net earnings of joint ventures {Note 12} (1.045,954) 3,908,740 13.420.076
Orthers - net {Note 26) 137,857,160 §5.174.767 87.766,560
52,492,749 33,230,027 33605152
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 9.947.195,798 8.591.752.096 1,766,446 803

PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX
{(Note 29;

Current 2.460.634.670 2.728.650.540 1200775143
Deferred (22.585,153) (144.232.767) (73.607.958)

1.378.649.517 1584417772 1127170185
NET INCOME 7.5649,146.281 6.007.334.323 2.639276.620

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (1.OS8S) -
net of tax

frems nol 1o e reclassified 1o profir or loss in
subsequent periods:
Net changes in the fair market valve of

financial assets at FVOCT {Note 11} (70,236,040 (45.464.038) 2805891
Revaluation increment on land (Note 14) 122,178.941 -
Remeasurement gain (losst on revirement pians

{Note 273 575.619,706 (1.261.623.1433 {300.697 741

427,562,667 {1,307.487 1814 (207 RO RS0
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P8 106, TOR.888 24700247142 F2.341.384.776

Net income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests {Note 2)

B7.530.114.246
39.032.035

PEURA 584,039
22749 384

P2618.460.706
2815914

£7.56%.140.281

P6.007334373

P2639.276.620

Total comprehensive inceme attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non-controliing imerests (Note 73

PR160.335453
36,373,435

PLARO6ED K28
19564 317

P2I20.788.7423
205960127

PR.196.708.888

P4.700.247.143

P2341.384.770¢

Basic / Diluted Earnings Per Share (Note 3

P1348

Pi.231

P339

See accompanying Notes o Consolidared Financial Swtemenis.
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GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2021 2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P9.947,195,708 PESO1.752.096 3.766.446 803
Adjustments to reconcile income before income tax to
net cash flows:
Program and other rights usage (Notes & and 23} 1,007.347,705 703.415.807 988,703,737
Pension expense (Note 27) 639,758,760 646,198,143 402.209.767
Depreciation {Notes 13, 15, 23 24 and 28) 607,773,037 545 3752010 577,704 447
Provision for ECL. (Notes 7 and 24} 142,577,080 347195883 18,297 347
Contributions to retirement plan asscis (Notwe 27} {277.,799.873) (239,000.000) {266 448 811
Amortization of software costs (Notes 16 and 24) 49,700,046 40,264,073 26,785.389
Net unrealized foreign currency exchange foss 33,545,633 27.377.082 30,284 446
Interest expense (Notes 18 and 2§) 48,692,493 20,345,123 55.505 345
Net gain on sale of propertv and equipment and
investment properties (Notes 13, 15 and 26) {50,519,791) (17,250,932 {(21.368.209)
Interest meome {(Note 6} (16,235,317 (13,713,413} (22.906.786)
Equity in net earnings of joint ventures (Note 12) 1.645.9545 (2,908,740} (13.420.076}
Dividend mcome (Notes 11 and 26) - - -
Provision for impairment of investment
properties {Note 15) -
Working capital changes:
Decreases {increases) in;
Trade and other receivables 2.563.963.601 (5.589,407.23%) (402622 233)
Program and other rights (1,009.959.331} {(607.591.883) {1.090.250.250)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (986.774.896) (1.095.413,947; (273.963.440)
Increases (decreases) in;
Trade pavables and other current [iabilities (253.461.951) 571.870.472 239761 905
Obligations for program and other rights 47,539,541 45,573,277 18,449 846
Other long-term emplovee benefits 44,046,776 13.301.414 37.557.512
Benefits paid out of Group’'s own funds {Note 27} (36,744.104) (9.686.803) {7,055 884
Cash flows provided by operations 12.447,697,791 3.957.093.524 3.972.554.947
Income taxes paid (3.101,774,811)  {1.464.143968)  (1.113.334.341])
interest received 15,421 941 13,808,751 24,081 846
Net cash flows from operating activities 0361344921 2.506.758.307 2,884,202 .052
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:
Property and equipment (Note 13) (999,316,838} (421235387 (673,419,792
Sofiware costs (Note 16) (51,190,231 (10.616.139) {63,484.770)
Land at revained amount {Note 14) (142, 10868300 -
Proceeds from:
Sale of property and equipment (Note 13} 58,438,591 12797518 21186426
Sale of investment properties (Note 13) - - 4.910.714
Decreases (increases) m other noncurrent asseis (11,627,909 55.003.451 (73,898,045
Advances to an associate and joint ventures
(Notes 12 and 21) {1,869,712) (848.820) (8.131.342y

{Forward)



Years Ended December 31

2021

2020

Cash dividends received

Return of investment in financial asset at FVOC]
{(Note 1 1)

Collection from an associate and joint venfures
(Notes 12 and 21)

P

497,048

B3IE1.500

Net cash flows used i Investing activities

£1.147.109.887)

(796.837.709)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from availments of short-term loans
(Notes 1§ and 33)

Payments of:
Cash dividends (Notes 2. 20 and 33}
Short-term joans (Notes 18 and 33)
Principal portion of lease liabilities

(Notes 28 and 33}

Interest expense (Note 33)

4.479,150,000

(6.549,223.12Y)
{4.542.575,000)

(26,744.140)
(38.330.656)

084.340.000

(1.474.749. 102
{64].895.600)

{(21.762.363)
(12.856.998)

1.517.500.00G

{2.198.159.065}
(1.617.500.000)

Net cash flows used in financing activifies

6,677,722.918)

{1.166.923.463)

NET INCREASE (BECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

1.536.512,116

42,236,774

3.214.817.264

086.216.961

(20.371,353)

2.254.971.656

{278.152.7843

(25.980.882}

£

359105322

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR (Note 6}

£4.793,566,154

23 214.817.264

P22A34.671.656

See accompanyving Notes 1o Conrsolidaied Flaaneiad Siaremenis




GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

GMA Nerwork, Inc. (GNI or the Parent Company) and its subsidiartes {collectively referred to as
“the Group™) are incorporated in the Philippines. The Group is primarily involved in the business of
radio and television broadeasting. The Group s also involved in film production and other
information and entertainment-related businesses. The Parent Company was registered with the
Phihppine Securities and Exchange Commuission {SEC) on June 14, 1950, On Julv 20, 1993, the
Board of Directors (BOD) approved the extension of the corporate term of the Parent Company for
another 30 years from June 14, 2000, In 1997, the SEC approved the said extension.

The Parent Company’s shares of stock are publicly listed and traded in the Philippine Stock
Exchange.

The registered office address of the Parent Company 15 GMA Network Center, Timog Avenue cornet
EDSA, Quezon City.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group were approved and authorized for
1ssuance by the BOD on March 25, 2022,

b2

Basis of Preparation and Consclidation, Statement of Compliance and Changes in Accounting
Policies and Disclosures

Basis of Preparation

The consciidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVQCI) and land at
revalued amounts, which are measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are
presented m Philippine peso, which 13 the Parent Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Ali values are rounded to the nearest peso. except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and
is subsidiaries as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2021, The Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

s Power over the investee {i.e., existing rights that give if the current abilitv to divect the relevant
activities of the mvestee):

s Exposure. or rights, to variabie returns from its involvement with the invesiee; and

« The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.



Generally, there 1s a presumption that a majonty of voting rights results in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has Jess than a majonity of the voting or similar rights of an
invesiee, the Group considers all refevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

o  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
e Right arising from other contractual arrangements
s The Group's voting rights and potential voung rights

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee 1f facts and circumstances mdicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

Consohidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, Habilities, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the vear are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date the Company ceases fo
contro! the subsidiary,

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCT) are attributed o the equity
hoiders of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests (NCI3, even if this results in the
NCI having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made 1o the financial statements of
subsidiaries o bring their accounting policies in hine with the Parent Company’s accounting policies.
All intra-group assets and labilities. equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated m full on conselidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

1f the Company loses control over a subsidiary. it derecognizes the related agsets {inchuding
goodwill). habilies, NCI and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Any investment retained is
recagnized at fair value.

NCT represents the portion of profit or loss and the nert assets not held by owners of the Paren!
Company and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive mcome and
within equity in the consolidated statements of financial position. separately from equity attributable
to holders of the Parent Company. NCIT shares in losses even if the losses exceed the non-controlling
equiry mferest in the subsidiary. NCI represents the equity inferest in RGMA Nertwork, Inc. iRGMA
Nerwork), a subsidiary incorporated 1n the Philippines with principal place of business at GMA
Nerwork Center, Timog Avenue comer EDSA Quezon City.

The consolidated financial statements include additional information about subsidiary that have NCT
that are maferial to the Parent Company. Management deiermined material partly-owned subsidiary
as those with greater than 3% of non-controlling interests and/or subsidiaries whose activities are
umportant to the Group as at end of the vear.

Financial information of RGMA Network. a subsidiary that has material NCI. are summarized below:

2021 2020
Proportion of equity interest heid by NCI 31% 5319
Accumulated balances of material NC1 PI1061.681.3058 72.357.870

Net income allocated to material NC1 39,032,035 22,749,384



_3.

The summarized financial information of RGMA Network are provided below.

Summarized Statements of Comprehensive Income

2021 2020 2019
Revenues £340,609,783 P283.910,546 B263,084,575
Expenses (242,989,698 (220,191,603) (202,163,725)
Provision for income tax (21.086,683) {19.112.307) (22.165.333)

Net income
Other comprehensive income

76.533,402

44,606,636

(loss) (5,212.941) {6.245,230) {431.151)
Total comprehensive income P71.320.461 B38.361,406 £40.384.366
Net income attributable 1o

NCi B39,632.035 P22,749 384 P20.815914

Parent Company 37.501.367 21.857.252 19,999,603

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
NCI
Parent Company

B36.373,435
34.947.026

£19.564.317
18,707 089

B20.596,027
15.788.336

Sumrnarized Statements of Financial Position

2021 2020
Total current assets P271,241,324 PI32.111.479
Total noncurrent assets 52,017,880 36,449 915
Total current liabilities 31,240,973 42,339 302
Total noncurrent habilities 92,031,658 84 343 827
Total equity 199,986,573 141.878.175
Attributable 1o NCI 101,081,305 B72.357.870
Attributable to equity holders of

the Parent Company £98.905,268 P69 5320305
Sunmanarized Cash Fiows Information
2021 2020 2019

Operating P205,174.862 (P7.293,612) B68.068.256
Investing (7,575,717 {4,846,596) {838.659)

Financing

{15.000.000)

{35.000.000)

(25,000,000}

Net increase {decrease) tn cash

and cash equivalents

P182.599.085

{(P47.140,208)

42 220 567

In 2021 and 2020, RGMA declared and paid dividends amounting to #7.65 million and

P17 85 million. respectively. to NC1



The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and the following
subsidiaries as at December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Percentage
of Ownership
Principal Activities Direct  Indirect
Entertainment Business:
Alta Productions Group, inc. (Aha) Pre and post-production services 100
Cityner Network Marketing and Television enterrainment production, 100
Productions. Inc. {Citvnet)
GMaA Network: Films, Inc. Film production 100
GMA New Media. Inc. (GNMI) Converging echnology 106
GMA Worldwide (Philippines), Inc.”  Internauonal markering, handling foreign program 160
acquisitions and intemational syndication of the Parent
Company’s programs
Seenarios, Ine ¥ Design, construction and maintenance of sets for TV, stage 100
plays and concerts: Tansportation services
ROMA Marketing and Productions. Inc. Music recordime, pubhishing and videe distribution s -
ROMA, Network Radio broadeasting and mamgemen 49
Seript2010. Inc o Dessgn. construction and mamtenance of sets for TV, stage - 100
plays and concerts: transportation and magpower
SErVices

Holding Company:

GMA Ventures, Inc. (GVI) [dentifving, investing in. and/or building strong and 10
sustainabie husinesses

Advertising Business:

GMA Marketing & Productions. Exclusive marketing and sales armm of Parent Company’s 1o0
Inc. {GMPYy##s* airtime. events management, sales implementation.
waffic services and monitoring
Digify. Ing ###== Crafting, planning and handling advertising and other forms 10K}

of promotion including multi-media productions

Others:

Media Marge Corporation® ¥ ¥ Busmess development and operations for the Paremt Hi

Company’s online publishing and advertising intiarives
Ceased commercial operations in 2004,

(v

Ninja Graphics, Ine ##ssess
*Coased commercial nperaions v 3
**inder hguidaion
* ¥ ndivectly owned through Civne:

FEEECeased commerciel operations tn 2013

FEEF eli suwned rough GNMI

FEEE pgiireciiv owned through GNMI: ceased commercial operarions e 2024
FRRERE S Indirecdy owned through Ale: ceased commercial aperations ie 2014

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting pelicies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial vear. except that
the Group has adopted the following new pronouncements starting January 1, 2021,

Unless otherwise indicated, adoption of these new standards did not have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group,

+«  Amendment to PFRS 16, COVID- [ 9-refated Rent Concessions bevond 30 June 207}

The amendment provides relief to lessees from applving the PFRS 16 requirement on lease
modifications o rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. A
lessee mav elect not to assess whether a rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification if 1t
meets all of the following critena:

o The rent concession 1s a direct consequence of COVID-19;

o The change in lease payments results in a revised lease consideration that is substantially the
sane as. or less than, the lease consideration immediately preceding the change:

o Any reduction in lease pavments affects only pavments originaliv due on or before
June 30, 2022 and




i
LA
s

o There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

A essec that apphies this practical expedient will account for any change in lease payments
resulsing from the COVID-19 related rent concession in the same way it would account for a
change that is not a lease modification. 1.¢., as a vaniable lease payment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April I, 2021.
Earlv adoption 1s permitted.

The Group adopred the amendment beginning April 1. 2021. These amendments had no tmpact
on the financial statements of the Group.

Amendments to PFRS 9, PAS 39, PFRS 7, PFRS 4 and PFRS 16, Inrerest Rate Benchmiark
Reform - Phase 2

The amendments provide the following temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting

effects when an mterbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free

inerest rate (RFR):

o Practical expedient for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as a
result of IBOR reform

o Relief from discontinuing hedging relationships

o Relief from the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as
4 hedge of a nsk component

The Group shall also disclose information about:

o The nature and extent of nisks to which the entity is exposed ansing from financial
Instruments subject to IBOR reform, and how the enfity manages those risks; and

o Their progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity
15 managing that transition

The Group adopted the amendments beginning January 1, 2021, These amendments had no
impact on the financial statements of the Group,

New Accounting Standards, Imerpretations and Amendments to Existing Standards
Eftective Subsequent to December 31, 2021

Pronouncements 1ssued but not vet effective are listed betow. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements will have a significant impact on
its consolidated financial statements. The Group mtends to adopt the foliowing pronouncements
when they become effective,

Effective beginning on or after January [, 2022

Amendments to PFRS 3. Reference 1o the Conceptual Framework

The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statemenis, issued in 1989, with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 1ssued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments added an exception to the recognition principle of PFRS 3,
Business Combinations o avoid the issue of pofential “day 2"gains or losses arising for liabilites
and contingent habilities that would be within the scope of PAS 37, Provisions, Conringenr
Liabilities and Contingent Assers or Philippine-IFRIC 21, Levies. if incurred separately.
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At the same time, the amendments add a new paragraph to PFRS 3 to clarifv that contingent
assets do not gualify for recognition at the acquisition date.

‘The amendments are effective for annual reporting peniods beginning on or after Januarv 1, 2022
and apply prospectively.

The Group 1s currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.

Amendments to PAS 16, Plant and Eguipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it 1o be capable of operating in the manner iniended by management.
Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from seiling such items, and the costs of producing
those 1tems. 1n profit or loss.

The amendment s effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afier Januarv 1, 2022
and must be apphied retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first applies the
amendment.

The amendments are not expected to have a matenial impact on the Group.

Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify which costs an enuty needs to include when assessing whether 2
confract is onerous or ioss-making, The amendmenis apply a “directly related cost approach™
The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental
costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities. General and adnyinistrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitlv chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022.
The Group will apply these amendments to contracts for which it has not vet fulfiiled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it {irst applies the
amendments,

These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cyvcle

= Amendments to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippines Financial Reporting Standards,

Subsidiary as a first-time adopter

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1 to
measure cumulative translation differences nsing the amounts reported by the parent, based
on the parent’s date of ransition to PFRS. This amendment 1s also applied to an associate or
joint venture that elects te apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1.

The amendment 15 effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
Tanuary 1, 2022 with earlier adoption permitred. The amendments are not expected to have a
material impact on the Group.



= Amendments to PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, Fees in the 10 per cent test jor
derecognition of financial Habilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of
a new or modified financial hability are substansially different from the terms of the original
financial liabiiity. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other's
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial Habilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first
applies the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2022 with earbier adoption permitted, The Group will apply the amendments fo
financial Habilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The amendments are not
expected to have a matenal impact on the Group.

= Amendments to PAS 41, dgriculture, Taxation in fair value measurements

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 that entities exclude
cash flows for taxation when measuring the fair value of asseis within the scope of
PAS 41

An entity applies the amendment prospectively to fair value measurements on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1. 2022 with
earlier adoption permutted. The amendments are not expected 1o have a material impact on
the Group.

Effective beginning on or afier January 1, 2023
= Amendments to PAS 12, Deferred Tax related 1o Assets and Linbilities arising from a Single

Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the 1nitial recognition exception under PAS 12, so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.
The amendments also clarify that where payments that settle a iabihity are deductible {or tax
purposes. it 1s a matter of judgement (having considered the apphcable tax taw) whether

such deductions are attributable for tax purposes to the liability recogmzed 1n the financial
statements {(and interest expense) or to the related asset component {and mterest expense).

An entity applies the amendments to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented for annual reporting periods on or after January 1, 2023.

The Group is currently assessing the impaces of adopring these amendments.

= Amendments to PAS 8, Definition of Accouniing Estimates

The amendments introduce a new defimtion of accounting estimates and clarify the distinction
between changes 1n accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and
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the correction of errors. Also, the amendments clarify that the effects on an accounting estimate
of a change in an input or a change in a measurement technigue are changes in accounting
estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior period errors.

An entity applies the amendments to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after January 1, 2023 with earlier adoption permittec. The amendments
are not expected ¢ have a material impact on the Group,

* Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments provide guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy
disclosures that are more useful by:

* Replacing the requirement for entities to disciose their ‘significant” accounting policies
with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies, and

*  Adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions
about accounting policy disclosures

The amendments 1o the Practice Statement provide non-mandatory guidance. Meanwhile, the
amendments to PAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after Yanuary 1. 2023,
Early application is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed. The amendments are not expected
to have a material impact on the Group.

Effective beginning on or after Jameary 1, 2024

e Amendments to PAS 1, Clagsification of Liabilities as Currvent or Non-ciorrent

The amendments clarify paragraphs 69 o 76 of PAS 1, Presemation of Financial Statements, 16
specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments
clarify:
= What is meant by a right to defer settlement
*  That aright o defer must exist at the end of the reporting period
*  That classification 1s vnaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral
right
*  That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible Hability is itself an eguity instrument
would the terms of a lality not impact 1is classification

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after

Tanuary 1. 2023 and must be applied retrospectivelv. However, in November 2021, the
International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) fentattvely decided to defer the effective date
to no earlier than January 1, 2024,

The Group s currently assessmyg the impact of adopting these amendments.



Effective beginning on or afier January I, 2023

= PERS 17, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracis covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 wall replace
PFRS 4, Insurance Coniracts. This new standard on insurance coniracts applies to all types of
msurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of
entities that 1ssue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with
discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply.

‘The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that
is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are
largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting poelicies, PFRS 17 provides a
comprehenstve model for msurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core
of PFRS 17 s the general model, supplemented by

= A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee
approach)
= A simplified approach (the premium aliocation approach) mainly for shori-duration

coniracis

On December 15, 2021, the FRSC amended the mandatory effective date of PFRS 17 from
fanuary 1, 2023 to January 1, 2025. This is consistent with Circular Letter No. 2020-62 issued by
the Insurance Commission which deferred the implementation of PFRS 17 by two (2) vears after
its effective date as decided bv the JASB.

PFRS 17 15 effective for reporting periods beginning on or after fanuary 1, 20253, with
comparative figures required. Early applicanion is penmitted.

PFRS 17 1s not applicable to the Group since it is not engaged in providing insurance nor issuing
insurance contracts,

Deferved effectivity

s Amendments o PFRS 10, Consolidaied Financial Statements, and PAS 28 Sale or Coniribution
of Assers berween an Investor and its Associate or Joint Fenture

The amendments address the conflict between PTRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing wiih the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture, The
amendments clarify that a full gain or Joss is recognized when a {ransfer 10 an associate or joint
veniure involves a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or
contributton of assets that does not constitute a business. however, 1s recognized only o the
extent of unrelated investors™ interests in the associate or joint venture.

On Fanuary 13, 2016. the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the original effective
date of January 1. 2016 of the said amendments until the [ASB compietes its broader review of
the research project on equity accounting that may resuit in the simplification of accounting for
such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint ventures.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting these amendments.
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Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in conselidated statement of financial position based on
current/noncurrent classification.

An asset 1s current when it is:

e expected te be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cvcle;

e  held primarily for tie purpose of frading;

s expected 10 be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

e cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Hability for af
least twelve months after the reporting period,

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.
A liability 18 current when:

s 1l 1s expecied io be settled in normal operating cycle;

« 1t1s held primarily for the purpose of trading;

s it 1s due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period: or

e there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Hability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other habilities are classified as noncurrent.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities, respectively.

'The Group also modifies classification of prior vear amounts {0 conform 1o current vear's
presentation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid nvestments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less
from acquisttion date and that are subject to an nsignificant risk of change in value.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value related
disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value or where
fair values are disclosed. are summarized in the following notes:

»  Disclosures for significant estimates and assumphons. see Note 4

+  (Quantitative disciosures of fair value measurement hierarchy, see Note 32

¢ Land. see Note 14

¢ Investment propernes, see Note 15

s  Financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost), see Note 32

Fair value is the estimated price that wouid be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer & labiluy in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement 15 based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:



il

s in the principal markert for the asset or hablity; or
+ 1n the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or iiability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or hability. assuming that market participants act in their economic
best Interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes inte account a market participant’s ability 1o
generafe economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 1o another
market participant that would use the asset in 1ts highest and best use.

The Group uses valuaiion technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are avaitable to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observabie trputs
and minmizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and habiliies for which fair value 15 measured or disclosed in the consolidated financtal
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that s sigmficant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

¢ [evel - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level2 - Valuation techniques for whach the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

s Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 15 significant to the fair value
measurement 15 unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consohdated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether fransfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing catevorization (based on the lowest level mput that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and nisks of the asset or Hiabilitv and the level of the fair value
herarchy as explained above.

“Pav 1 Difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market 15 different from the fair value of other observable
current market transactions in the same mstrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference between the
transaction price and fair value (2 "Day 17 difference} in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where the data used is
not observable, the difference between the transaction price and model vatue is only recognized in
profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each
transaction, the Group deternunes the appropriate method of recogmzing the “Dayv 17 difference
amourt.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument 13 any contract that give rise fo a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another enfify.




Financial Assets
Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortized cost. FVOCL and fair value through profit or loss {(FVPL).

The classification of financial assets at inifial recognitton depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business mode! for managing them. Wiih the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient. the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at FVPL. ransaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under PFRS 15, Revemue from Contracrs with
Cusiomers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured ai amortized cost or FVOCL, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely pavments of principal and interest” (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment 15 referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument
tevel.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages 1is financial
assets it order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will resuk
from coliecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention m the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date.
1.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement. For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in
four categories:

#= financial assets at amortized cost {debt instruments)

= financial assets at FVOCI with recveling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

* financial assets designated al FVOCT with no recyching of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

= financial assets at FVPL

The Group does not have debt instruments at FVOCT and financial assets ar FVPL as ar
December 31, 2021 and 20620,

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost (Debt Insiruments). The Group measures financial assets at
amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

= The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contracrual cash flows; and

= The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are
SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at atoriized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method and are subject 1o impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income when the asset 1s derecognzed, modified or inmaired.

The Group's financiaf assets at amortized cost includes cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables and refundable deposits {inciuded under “Other noncurrent assets”™ account in the



consolidated statement of financial position) as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 (see Notes 6, 7, 16
and 31).

Firancial dsseis Designated at FVOCI (Equity Instrumenss). Upon initial recognition. the Group can
elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at FVOCT when
they meet the definition of equity under PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recyeled to profit or loss. Dividends are
recognized as “Dividend income” included under “Others - Net™ account in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income when the right of pavment has been established. except when the
Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in OCIL. Equity instruments designated at FVOCT are not subject to
Impairment assessment.

The Group elected to classify mrevocably under this category its fisted and non-listed equity
instruments and investment in quoted club shares as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 (see Notes 11
and 31).

Derecogminion of Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where apptlicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial asseis) is primarily derecognized {i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidased statement of
financial position) when:

* the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
= the Group has ransferred its rights 1o recetve cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material detay to a third party under
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement: and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has netther transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arangement. 1t evaluates 1f, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset. nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case. the Group also recognizes an associated
lability. The transferred asset and the associated Hability are measured on a basis that reflecrs the
rights and obiigations that the Group has retamed.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrving amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required o repay.

impairment of Financial Assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not beld at FVPL. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounied at an approximation of the original
EIR. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.




ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase m credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit josses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a Hfetime ECL).

For mrade receivables. the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs, Therefore, the
Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recogmzes a loss allowance based on lifetime
£CLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that 1s based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
SCONOIMHC environment.

For other financial assets such as due from related parties and advances to associates and joint
ventures, the Group applies a general approach which measures ECL on either a | 2-month or lifetime
basis depending on whether a significant increase in credit risks has occurred since initial recognition
or whether an asset is considered 1o be credit-impaired, adjusted for the effecis of collateral, forward-
looking factors and time vatue of money.

For cash and cash equivalents. the Group applies the low credit risk simplification, At every
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk
using all reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. In
making that evaluation. the Group reassesses the external credit rating of the debt instrument or
comparable instruments.

The Group, in general, considers a financial asset in defanlt when contractual pavments are 90 davs
past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider z financial asset o be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is uniikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off, in whole or in part. when the asset is considered uncollectible, the Group
has exhausted al! practical recovery efforts and has concluded that it has no reasonable expectations
of recovering the financial asser in its entirety or a portion thereof.

Finaneial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measuremenr. Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings, payabies, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge. as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized imtially ar fair value and, in the case of foans and borrowings
and pavables. net of directly attributable ransaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade pavables and other cusrent liabilities {excluding
payable to government agencies. customers’ deposits and contract f1abilities), short-term loans,
obligations for program and other rights, dividends payabie and lease liabilities.

Subsequent Measurement. The measurement of financial labilities depends on thewr classification. as
described below:

Financial Liabilities ai FYPL. Financial habiliies at FVPL mmclude financial liabiliies held for
trading and financial liabilifies designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL. Financial labilities
are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category aiso includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
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designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by PFRS 9. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
HISITHINENS.

(rains or losses on liabilines held for trading are recognized in the conselidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Financtal liabilities designated upon initial recognition at FVPL are designared at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in PFRS 0 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any
financial liability as a1t FVPL ag at December 31, 2621 and 2020,

Loans and Borrowings. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the FIR method, Gaing and losses are
recognized in profit or foss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortizaton process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as “Interest expense™ in
the consolidated staiement of comprehensive income.

This category generally applies to trade pavabies and other current liabilities (excluding payable to
government agencies, customers’ deposits and contract fiabilities), short-term loans, obligations for
program and other righis, dividends payable and lease liabilities (see Notes 17, 18, 19, 20, 28 and 313

Derecogntion of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the Hability is discharged or cancelied
or expires. When an existing financial hiabiiity 1s replaced by another from the same lender on
substantally different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantiallv modified, such an
exchange or modification 1s treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new hability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive mcome.

Classification of Financial Instruments Between Liability and Eguity
A financial instrument is classified as Hability if it provides for a contractual obligation to;

e deliver cash or another {inancial asset (o another enity;

e exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another emity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Group: or

e satisfv the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Group does not have an unconditional nght 10 avoid delivering cash or another financial asset
io settle its confractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial Hability.

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both lability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount afier
deducting from the instrument as a whole the amount separatelv determined as the fair value of the
liablity component on the date of 1ssue.

Offserting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
staternent of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized




S 1h -

amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. The Group assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right is
not contingent on a future event, and 1s iegally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of
default, and event of insotvency or bankruptcy of the Group and all of the counterparties.

Program and Other Richts

Program and other rights with {inite lives are stated at cost less amortization and impairment in value.
The estimated useful lives and the amortization method used depend on the manner and pattern of
usage of the acquired rights. The cost of program and other nghts with multiple number of runs
within a specified term is amortized using straight line method up to the date of expiry.

From September 1, 2019, the Group changed its accounting policy for amortizing the cost of program
and other rights with no definite expiration from accelerated method based on the sum of the year’s
digit of ten vears with salvage value of 10% of the 1o1al cost to swraight-line method over ten vears
based on the current bool values so as to allow recognition of amortization egually and to be
consistent with the method of amortizing program rights with multiple number of runs within a
specified term. Management takes the view that this policy provides reliable and more relevant
mnformation because it is reflective of the pattern of consumption of program rights.

Amortization expense 1s shown as “Program and other rights usage” included under “Production
costs” account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive mcome.

For series of rights acquired, the cost i1s charged to profit or joss as each series is aired on a per
episode basis.

For rights intended for airing over the international channels, the cost is amortized on a straight-line
basis over the number of vears indicated in the contract.

Prepaid Production Costs

Prepaid production costs, included under “Prepaid expenses and other current assets™ account in the
consohdated statement of financial position, represent costs paid i advance prior to the airing of the
programs or episodes. These costs include talent fees of artists and production staff and other costs
directly attributable to producton of programs. These are charged to expense under “Production
costs” account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive meome upon airing of the related
program or episodes. Costs related to previously taped episodes determined not 1o be aired are
charged to expense.

mventories

Merchandise inventory and materials and supphies inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighied average method. Net realizable value of
inventories that are for sale 1s the estimated seliing price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimaied cosis necessary to make the sale. Net realizable vatue of inventories not held for sale is the
current replacement cost,

Tax Credits

Tax credits represent claims from the government arising from airing of government commercials and
advertisements availed under Presidential Decree (PD} No. {362, Pursuant to P> No. 1362, these
will be collected 1n the form of 1ax credits which the Group can use 1n paying for import duties and
taxes on imported broadcasting related equipment. The tax credits cannot be used to pay for any
other tax obligation to the government.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group's tax credits are classified as current under “Prepaid
expenses and other current assets”™ account in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Advances to Suppliers

Advances to suppliers, inciuded under “Prepaid expenses and other current assets™ account in the
consolidared statement of financial position, are noninterest-bearing and are generally applied to
acquistion: of invenionies, programs and other nights, availmenis of services and others.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, except for land, are stated at cost, net of accumuiated depreciation and
amortization and impairment losses, if any. Such cost inciudes the cost of replacing part of the
property and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are mel. When significant parts of propenty and equipment are required o be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful Hves and
depreciates them accordingly. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss
as incurred.

Land is measured at fair value less accumulated impairment losses, if any, recognized after the date of
the revaluation. Valuations are generally performed every three to five vears or more frequently as
deemed necessary to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ matetially from its
carrying amount.

Any revaluation surplus 1s recorded in other comprehensive income and hence, credited to the
“Revaluation increment on land - net of tax™ account under equity, except to the extent that it reverses
arevaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss, in which case, the
merease is recognized i profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognized in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognized in the “Revaluation
mncrement on land - net of tax” account.

Depreciation and amortization are computed on a stratght-line basis over the following estimated
useful lives of the assets:

Buildings, towers and improvements 11-20 years
Antenna and transmitier systems ang broadcast equipment 5-10 years
Communication and mechanical equipment 3-3 years
Transportation equipment 4-5 vears
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

An item of property and equipment and any significant part mifiaily recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no futore economic benefits are expected from s use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation and amortization are reviewed at
each financial vear-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts unti! thev are no longer in use and no further
depreciation and amortizanon is credited or charged o current operations.

Construction in progress is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction and other direct costs.
Construction mn progress is not depreciated until such time as the relevant assets are completed and
put infe operational use.

Investment Properties
Investment properties consist of real estate held for captal appreciation and rental.
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Investment properties are measured initially at cost, meluding transaction costs. Subsequent (o initial
recognition. investment properties, except land, are measured al cost less accumulated depreciation
and amortization and impatrment in value. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in vaiue.

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over 11-20 vears.

The remamning useful fives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each financial vear-end.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment properties are permanently withdrawn trom use and no future economic benefiis are
expected from its disposal, Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized int profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a fransier
from investment property to owner-occupied property. the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is
the fair value at the date of change in use. H owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property. the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property
and equipment up to the date of change 1n use.

investment in Artworks
Investment in artworks, included under “Other noncurrent assets™ account in the consolidated
statement of financial position, 1s stated at cost less any impairment in value.

Software Costs

Costs incurred in the acquisition and customization of new software, included under “Qther
noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statement of financial position, are capitalized and
amortized on a straight-line basis over three to ten years,

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying values of program and other rights, prepaid production costs, deferred production costs,
tax credits, investments and advances, property and equipment, right-of-use assets, mvestment
properuies, software costs and investment in artworks are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes m circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists. and if the carrving value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are
considered impaired and are written down fo their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
these nonfinancial assets 15 the greater of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less cost to
sell or value in use and is determined for an individual asset. unless the asset does not generate cash
mflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. The fair value less
cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction less cost
to sell. In assessing value in use. the estmated fature cash flows are discounted to their presenr value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows,
the recoverable amount 1s determined for the cash generating unit (CGUY to which the asset belongs.
Impairment losses. if any, are recognized i profit or loss in the consohidated statement of
comprehensive income n those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impaiment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount 1s estimated, A previously recognized impairment loss, except for
jand at revalued amount where the revalvuation is taken to OCI, is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used fo determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment
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loss was recognized. [f that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased fo its
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the camrving amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impainment loss been recognized for the
asset m prior vears. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss. After such a reversal, the
depreciation and amortization charges are adjusted i future periods 10 allocate the asset’s revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaiming useful life. For
iand at revalued amounts, the reversal of impairment 15 atso recognized in OCI up to the amount of
any previous revaloation.

In the case of investments in associate and inferests in joint ventures, after application of the equity
method. the Group determines whether 1t is necessary to recognize any additional impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s Investments in assoctate and interests in joint ventures. The Group
determines at each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that the investments in
associate and interests in joint ventures are impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as being the difference between the recoverable amount of investments in
associate and inferests in joint veniures, and the acquisition cost and recognizes the amount in the
consohdated statement of comprehensive income.

Investments in an Associate and Joant Venmres

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Sigmficant influence is the
power fo participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the invesiee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights 1o the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of controt of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those
necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments 1n 1ts assoclate and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method.

Under the equity method. the investment i an associate or a joint venture 1s initially recognized at
cost. The carrving amount of the investment 1s adjusted to recognize changes in the Group’s share of
net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date.

Goodwill relating o the associate or joint venture is included 1n the carrving amount of the
investment and 18 not tested for imparrment individualiy.

The Group's share of the results of operations of the associate or joiat venture is inchuded in profit or
loss. Any change in QCT of those invesiees is presented as part of the Group’s OCL In addition,
when there has been a change recognized directly in the equiry of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable. 1 the consolidated statement of changes
i equity. Unreabized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the
associaie or joint venture are eliminated to the exteni of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture 15 shown on
the face of the consclidated statement of comprenensive income outside operating profit and
represents profit or loss after tax and NCI in the subsidiaries of the associate or joint venture.
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if the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate or joinl veniure, the Group disconlinues recognizing its share of further iosses.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those
of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment loss on its investment in associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group
determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture 1s
impaired. [f there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrving value, and then
recognizes the loss under “Equity in net earnings (fosses) of joint veniures™ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognizes any retained mvestrent at its fair value, Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Capital stock 1s measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred directly
attributable to the ssuance of new shares are shown In equity as a deduction from proceeds. net of
tax. Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par value are recognized as

additional paid-in capital.

Retained earings include all current and prior period results of operations as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, net of any dividend declaration. adjusted for the
efiects of changes in accounting policies as may be required by PFRS’ transitional provisions.

Treasurv Stocks and Underlving Shares of the Acquired Philippine Deposit Receints (PDRg}

The Parent Company's own reacquired equity mstruments are deducted from equity. No gain or loss
is recognized in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale, issuance
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity Instruments.

Each PDR enttles the holder to the economic interest of the underlying common share of the Parent
Company. The Parenr Company’s ownership of the PDRs are presented similar to treasury shares in
the consolidated statement of financial position,

Dividends on Common Shares of the Parent Company

Dividends on common shares are recognized as fiability and deducted from equity when approved by
the BOD of the Parent Company. Dividends for the vear that are approved after reporting period are
dealt with as an event afier reporting period,

Revenue Recognition

a. PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracis with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers 1s recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred 1o the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects fo be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Group assesses iis revenue
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arrangements against specific critena to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group
has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue is recognized when the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a
promised good or service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains comrol of the good
or service. A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over fime. The
amount of revenue recognized is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Advertising Revenue. Revenue s recognized 1n the period the adverfisements are aired.

Payments recetved for advertisements before broadcast {pay before broadcast) are recognized as
income on the dates the advertisements are aired. Prior 1o liquidation, these are classified as
uneamed revenue under “Coniract fabilities™ under “Trade pavables and other current Habilities”
account, in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Goods received in exchange for airtime usage pursuant to exchange deal contracts executed
between the Group and its customers are recorded af fair market values of assets received. Fair
market vatue is the current market price.

Tax credits on aggregate airtime credits from government sales availed of under PD No. 1362 are
recognized as reveriue when there is reasonable certainty that these can be used to pay duties and
taxes on mported broadeasting related equipment.

Subscription Revenue. Subscription fees are recognized over the subscription period in
accordance with the terms of the subscnption agreements.

Sale of goods. Sale of goods pertain 10 sale of set-top boxes, digital TV mobile receivers and
other merchandises. Revenue is recognized at a point in time when delivery has taken place and
transfer of control has been completed. These are stated net of sales discounts.

Revenue from Distribution and Content Provisioning. Revenue is recognized upon delivery of
the licensed content to customers.

Production Revemie. Production revenue 1s recognized at a point in time when project-retated
services are rendered.

Commission from Artist Cenrer. Revenue is recognized as revenue on an accrual basis in
accordance with the terms of the related marketing agreements.

Revenue Recognition Outside the Scope of PFRS 13

Rental Income. Revenue from lease of property and equipment and investment properties is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend Income. Revenug is recognized when the Group's right 1o receive payment is
established.

Interest Income. Revestue 18 recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective
vield on the asset.



Eqguin in Net Earnings (Losses) of Joint Venmres. The Group recognizes its share in the net
income or foss of joint ventures proportionate to the equity in the economic shares of such joint
ventures. in accordance with the equity method.

Other Income. Other income is recognized when there 15 an incidental economic benefit, other
than the usual business operations, that will flow to the Group through an increase in asset or

reduction in liability that can be measured reliably.

Contract Balances

Trade Receivables. A recewvable represents the Group’s nght to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before pavment of the consideration is due).
Refer to the accounting policies of Financial Instruments section.

Confract Assets. A contract asset 1s the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services
transferred to the customer. 1f the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pavs consideration or before pavment is due, a confract asset is recognized for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract Liabilities. A contract Hability is the obligation to transfer goods or services 1o a customer
for which the Group has received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due,
whichever is earlier. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.

Incremental Costs to Obtain a Contract

The Group pays sales commissions (o 1ts account executives for each contract that they obtain for
advertising agreements with customers. The Group has elected to apply the optional practical
expedient for costs to obtan a contract which allows the Group to immediately expense sales
comnussions (presented as part of “Marketing expense” under “General and administrative expenses™
account m the consolidated statement of comprehensive income) because the amortization period of
the asset that the Group otherwise would have used is less than one vear.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily
take a substantial penod of time o get ready for its infended use or sale are capitalized as part of the
cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs
constst of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Expenses
Expenses, presented as “Production costs”, “Cost of sales”, and “General and administrative

expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, are recognized as incurred.

Pension and Other Long-Term Employvee Benefits

The Parent Company has a funded, noncontributory defied benefit retirement plan covering
permanent emplovees, Other entities are covered by Repubhic Act (R.A) 7641, otherwise known as
“The Philippine Retirement Law™, which provides for qualified emplovees to receive an amount
equivalent to a certain percentage of monthly salary at normal retirement age. In addition. the Group
has agreed to pay the cash equivalent of the accumulated unused vacation leave of the emplovees
upon separation from the Group.




The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit
credit method.

Defined Benefit Plans. The net defined benefit jiability or asset is the aggregate of the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan
assets (1f any}, adyusied for any effect of imiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling.

The asset ceiling is the present value of anv economic benefits available in the form of refunds from
the pian or reductions 1n future contributions to the plan,

The cost of providing benefits under defined benefit plan 15 determined using the projected unit credi
method.

Remeasurements. comprising of actuarial gains and losses. the effect of the asset ceiling. excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit lability and the return on plan assets
{excluding amounts included in nef interest on the net defined benefit Hability}, are recognized
immediately in the statement of financial position with a comresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss 1n subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of’

e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
» The date that the Group recognizes reiated restrocturing costs

Net interest is calculated by applving the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset,
The Group recognizes the foliowing changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “Production
costs” and “General and adminisirative expenses” accounts 11 consolidated statemenis of
comprehensive income (by function):

e Service costs comprising current service costs. past service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements.
s  Net interest expense or income

Pian assets are assets that are held by a long-term emplovee benefit fund. Fair value of plan assets is
based on market price information. When no market price is available, the fair value of plan assers is
estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rafe that reflects both the risk
assoctated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date of those assets {or, if they
have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the related obligations). If the fair value
of the plan assets is higher than the present vatue of the defined benefir obligation, the measurement
of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plan or reduct:ons in future contributions to the plan.

The Group’s right te be rexmbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is
virtually certain.

Leases

Leases. The Group assesses at confract inception whether a contract is, or contains. a lease. That is,
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration,



Group as Lessee. The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term ieases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlving assets.

e Righit-of-use Assets. The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the
lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is availabie for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumuiated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of Jease labilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of Jease
HLiabilities recognized. imtial direct costs incurred, and Jease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any Jease incentives received and estimate of costs to be incurred by the
lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underiying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease. unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories. Unless the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognized right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful {ife
and the iease term as follow:,

Land 2to 12 years
Buiidings, studio and office spaces 2to 6 years

Right-oftuse assets are subject to impairment.

e Lease Liabilities. At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes jease labilities
measured af the present value of lease pavments to be made over the lease term. The Jease
payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease pavments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual vaiue guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for terminating a iease, if the lease term refiects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as
expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present vaiue of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease Habilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made, In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there s a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change In the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.

¢ Short-term Leases. The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-
term leases (i.c., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commmencement
daie or mitial application of PFRS 16 and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on
short-term leases are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as Lessor. Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases are
recognized as income 1n the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straighs-fine basis
over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotialing an operating lease are added to the
carrving amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are eamned.
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Foreign Currencv-denominated Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency exchange rate at
the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency closing exchange rate at financial reporting period. All
differences are taken to profit or loss in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of lustorical cost in a foreign currency are iranslated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair valoe was
determined. For income tax purposes, foretgn exchange gains and losses are treated as raxable
income or deductible expenses when realized.

Taxes

Current Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantiaily enacted at reporting
period.

Current income fax relating to 1tems recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in
profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations m which applicabie tax regulations are subject to interpretation, and establishes provisions
where appropriate,

Deferred Tax, Deferred tax 1s provided using the liability method on femporary differences at
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carryving amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carrviorward benefits of
excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused
net operating toss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carryforward benefiis of excess
MCIT over RCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized, except;

+ where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the inital
recogmition of an asset or hability in a transaction that 1s noi a business combination and. at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit; and

¢ in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianes,
associates and interests in joint arrangements. deferred 1ax assets are recognized only (¢ the extent
that 1f s probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be availabie to allow ail or part of
the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reportmg period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
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Deferred tax habilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e where the deferred rax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
lzability in a transaction that is not a business combination and. at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit: and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arrangements, where the iming of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and 1f is probabie that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured af the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is realized or the hability 15 settled, based on tax rates and tax iaws to be enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset. if a legally enforceable right exists to set of T current tax
assets against current {ax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority,

Creditable Withholding Taxes. Creditable withholding faxes represent amounts withheld by the
Group’s customers and is deducted from the Group’s income tax pavable.

Value-added Tax (VAT). Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if
applicable.

When VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from
purchases of goods or services (input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable in the consolidated
statement of financial posiion. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input
VAT}) exceeds VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT, the excess is recognized as an
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or pavable to. the taxation authority is included as part of
“Prepaid expenses and other current assets™ or “Trade payabies and other current liabilides™ accounzs
in the consohdated statement of financial position.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income for the vear attributable to the equity holders of
the Parent Company. net of income attributable to preferred shares, by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the year, after considering the retroactive adjustments for anv
stock dividends declared, if any.

Diluted EPS 1s calculated by dividing the net income for the year atiributable to the equity holders of
the Parent Company (inclusive of mcome attributable to preferred shares) by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the year. plus the weighted average number of
common shares that would be issued upon conversion of all ditutive potential common shares.



Segment Reporiing

For management purposes, the Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately
nto television and radio airtime, international subscriptions and other business activities. Such
business segmenis are the basis upon which the Group reports its primary segment information. The
Group considers television and radio operations as the major business segment. The Group operates
1 two geographical areas where it dertves its revenue. Firancial information on business segments is
presenied in Note 5 to the consolidated financiat statements.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Group expects some or ali of a provision to be reimbursed, for exampie, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate assel, but only when the reimbursement 15
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income nef of any reimbursement.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits 1s remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements when an infilow
of economic benefits is probable.

Events after Reporting Period

Post vear-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the reporting
peried (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post vear-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statemenis when
material,

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumpfions

The preparation of the consohidated financial statements requires management o make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
related notes at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these judgments,
estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amou of the asset or habihity affected 1 future pertods.

Judgmenis

in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. management has made the following
Judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.

Consolidation of Entities in which the Group holds less than Majority of Voting Righis. The Group
considers that it controls RGMA Network even though it owns less than 30% of the voting rights.
This 1s because the Group 15 the single largest shareholder of RGMA Network with a 49% equity
interest. The remaining 51% of the equity shares in RGMA Network are owned by several parties.
Since September 27, 1995, which is the dare of incorporation of RGMA Network, there ts no history
of the other shareholders collaborating to exercise their votes coliectively or to outvoie the Group.
The carrving amount of NCI as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are P101.08 miilion and

P72 36 million, respectively.
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Assessment of Significant Influence over the Invesree. The Parent Company holds 25% ownership
interest in Optima Digital, Inc. as at December 31. 2021 and 2020. Even with more than 20% voting
rights, management assessed that the Parent Company does not have the power to participate in the
policy-making processes, including decisions to affect its returns in the form of dividends. Further.
the Parent Company does not have the ability to participate in the financial and operational policies
decision-making of the investee to affect its refevant activities.

Determination of Lease Term of Contracts with Renewal and Termination Options — Group as a
Lessee. The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it 1s reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option o terminate the lease. if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised,

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination: options. The Group
applies Judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option
to renew or terminate the lease. That 1s, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
mncentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termmation. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its
control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or (o terminate (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customization 1o the leased asset},

The Group did not inciude the renewal period as part of the lease term for its leases as these are
subject to mutual agreement and are not reasonably certain to be exercised. Furthermore, the periods
covered by termination options are included as part of the lease term because they are reasonably
certain not to be exercised,

Operating Leases - Group as Lessor. The Group has entered into various lease agreements as lessor.
The Group had determined that the risks and rewards of ownership of the undetlying property were
retained by the Group. Accordingty, the leases are classified as an operating lease,

Total rental tncome amounted 1o 26.19 million, £6.89 million and P8.56 million in 2021, 2020 and
2019, respectivety (see Note 26).

Estimaies and Assumptions

The kev assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting period, that have a significant nisk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial vear, are described below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising bevond the control of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Estimating the Incremental Borrowing Rare. The Group cannot readilv determine the interest rate
implicit in the tease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease
ijabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest thai the Group would have to payv to borrow over a similar
ferm, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-
of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group *would
have to pay’. which requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for
subsidiaries that do not enter into financing fransactions) or when they need te be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
markef interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as
the counterparty’s stand-alone credit rating).
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The Group’s lease liabilities amounted to #119.39 million and B76.86 million as at December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 28).

Estimating Allowance for ECL. The following mformarion explains the inputs, assumptions and
techniques used by the Group in estimating ECL for trade receivables:

Simplified approach for irade receivabies

The Group uses a simplified approach for calculating ECL on trade receivables through the use of
provision matrix to calculate ECLs. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e.. by customer tvpe}.

The provision matrix 1s imtially based.on the Group’s historical observed defauit rates. The
Group then calibrates the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (e.g., gross domestic product,
inflation rate, unemployment rate) are expected to deteriorate over the next vear which can Jead to
an increased number of defaults in the Group’s operating segments, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

Definition of default for rade receivables

The Group defines a trade recervable as in default, when it meets one or more of the following
criteria:

= The counterparty is experiencing financial difficuity or 1s msolvent
e The receivable 15 more than 360 days past due. The determination of the period is based on
the Group’s practice and agreement with their customers within the industry.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group considers a range of relevant forward-icoking macro-economic assumptions for the
determination of unbiased geperal indusiry adjustments that suppott the calculation of ECLs. A
broad range of forward-looking information are considered as economic inputs such as the gross
domestic product, inftation rate, unemployment rates and other economic indicators,

The macroeconomic factors are aligned with information used by the Group for other purposes
such as strategic planning and budgeting.

The Group identifies and documents key drivers of credit risk and credit losses of each portfolio
of financial instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships
between macro-economic variables and credit risk and credit losses,

Predicted relationship between the key macro-economic indicators and default and loss rates on
various portfolios of financial assets have been developed based on analyzing historical data over
the past 5 years. The methodologies and assumptions including any forecasts of furure economic
conditions are reviewed regularly,

Grouping of instruments for losses measured on collective basis

For expecied credit ioss provisions modelled on a collective basis, a grouping of exposures is
performed on the basis of shared risk characteristics. such that nisk exposures within a
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segmentation are homogenecus. The Group segmentized iis receivables based on the type of
customer (e.g., corporate and individuals},

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs 1s a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default
in the future.

Provision for ECL amounted to 2142 .58 million, 347,20 million and £18.30 million in 2021,
2020 and 2019, respectively (see Notes 7 and 24). The aliowance for ECL amounted io
009,10 million and £766.52 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectivelv. The
carrving amounts of trade and other receivables amounted to £7,784.55 million and
210,466.54 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 7).

Classification and Amortization of Program and Other Rights. Portions of program and other rights
are classified as current and noncurrent assets. Current portion represents those expected (o be aired
any time within its normai operating cvcle, whereas the noncurrent portion represents those without
definite expiration.

From September 1. 2019, the Group changed its accounting policy for amostizing the cost of program
and other rights with no defintte expiration date from accelerated method based on the sum of the
vear’s digat of ten years with salvage value of 108 of the total cost to straight-line method over ten
vears based on the current book values so as io allow recognifion of amortization egually and to be
consistent with the method of amortizing program rights with muitiple number of runs within a
specified term. Management takes the view that this policy provides reliable and more relevant
information because if 1s reflective of the pattern of consumption of the program rights.

The Group estimates the amortization of program and other nights with finite lives using straight line
method up to the date of expiry and those with no definite expiration date of up to ten vears, which 1s
the manner and patfern of usage of the acquired rights. in addition, estimation of the amortization of
program and other rights is based on the Group’s experience with such rights. It is possible, however,
that future results of operations could be materiaily affected by changes in estimates brought about by
changes i the factors mentioned abave. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period
would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances,

Program and other rights usage amounted to £1,007.35 million, P703 42 million and B988.70 milkion
in 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively {sce Notes & and 23). Program and other rights, net of
accumulated impairment in value of B2.70 million. amounted 1o 81,005.58 million and

2042 .97 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 8).

Estimaring Allowance for Inveniory Losses. The Group provides allowance for inventory losses
whenever the net realizable value becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical deteriorarion.
obsolescence. changes in price leveis or other causes. The allowance account is reviewed
periodically to reflect the accurate valuation of the inveniories.

The carrying value of merchandise mnventory and materials and supplies inventory in the consolidated
statement of financial posifion amounted o #1,137.43 mitlion and #237.05 million as at

December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 9). There were no provisions for inventory
fosses in 2021, 2020 and 2019
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Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Eguipment, Software Costs and Investment Properties.

The Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment, software costs and invesiment
properties based on the period over which the assets are expected 10 be available for use. The
estimaied useful lives of property and equipment, software costs and investment properties are
reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical
wear and fear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limiis on the use of the assets.
In addition, estimation of the useful lives of property and equipment. software costs and mvestment
properties 1s based on coliective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaiuation and
experience with similar assets. 1t is possible, however, thar future resulls of operations could he
matertaily affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above.
The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these
factors and circumstances, A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment,
software costs and investment properties would increase the recorded general and administrative
expenses and decrease noncurrent assets.

There has been no change in the Group’s estimate of useful lives of its property and equipment,
software costs and investment properties m 2021 and 2020,

Total depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019,
amounted to £630.37 million, B558.06 miilion and P373.83 million, respectively (see Notes 13, 13,
16, 23 and 24).

Revaluation of Land. The Group engages an accredited appraiser to determine the fair value of the
land used in operations. Fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence adjusted
based on certain elements of comparison. The fair value amount would differ if the Group made
different judgments and estimates or utilized a different basis for determining fair value,

Valuations from an accredited appraiser are generally performed every three {o five years or more
frequently as deemed necessary to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount.

In 2021 and 2020, there were no additional revaluation increment on land due to instgnificamt
movemenis in the fair value of the land. There 15 a revaluation increment on iand in 2018 amounting
fo #£990.37 million. The revalued amount of land, which is classified under “Property and
equipment” account in the statements of financial posttion, amounted to $2.943 30 million and
P2.803.20 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020. respectively (see Notes 14 and 32).

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assers, For prepaid production costs, tax credits, investments and
advances, property and equipment, right-of-use assets. investment propetties, program and other
rights, investment in artworks, deferred production costs and software costs. impairment testing 1s
performed whenever events or changes in circumstances mdicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable.

The factors that the Group considers inportant which could tnigger an impairment review include the
following:

* significant anderperformance relanive to expected historical or projected fufure operating results;

¢ sigmificant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business;

¢ sigmficanf negative mdustiry or economic trends; and

¢ obsolescence or physical damage of an asset.




The Group recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amoun!. The recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs to sell or agset’s
value in use. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, 1¥ 1t is nof possibie, for the
CGU to which the asset belongs.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group did not identify anv indicator of impairment on its
nonfinancial assets. hence, no impairment tests were carried out.

The carrying values of nonfinancial assets as at December 31 foliow:

2021 2020
Land at revalued amounts (see Note 14) P2,945.297.014 £2.803,196,184
Propertv and equipment - at cost {see Note 13} 2,985,503,552 2,588,113,704
Program and other nights (see Note 8) 1.005,577.541 842 966,005
Prepaid production costs (see Note 10) 708,980,295 428,553,144
Investments and advances (see Note 12) 184,791,025 184,524,315
Tax credits {see Note 10) 169,447,579 174,199 494
Sofiware costs (see Note 16) 113,208,864 97.071,541
Right-of-use assets (see Note 28) 123,923,786 89,268,275
Investment properties (see Note 13} 33,487,447 34,869,834
Investmeni in artworls (see Note 16) 10,186,136 10,186,136
Deferred production costs (see Note 16) 1,196,276 1,061,628

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at each
reporting date and reduces the carrying amount 1o the extent that it 1s no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
The Group’s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets on deductible temporary difference
and carryforward benefits of NOLCO and excess MCIT over RCIT is based on the projected taxable
income in the following periods.

Recognized deferred tax assets amounted to £1.485.26 million and £1,932.25 million as at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, while unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to
851 million and £8.56 miilion as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 29).

Pension and Other Emplovee Benefits. The determination of the Group's obligation and cost of
pension benefits is dependent on the selection of certam assumptions used by actuaries in calculating
such amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 27 and include, among others, discount rate
and salarv increase rate. Due o the complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
henefit obligation 1s highly sensttive to changes in these assamptions.

Pension: hability amousted to 24,169.69 million and £4,915.13 million as at December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively (see Note 27),

Determination of Fair Value of Financial Assets at FVOC! Financial assets at FVOCT are carried
and disclosed at fair vatue, which requires extensive use of accounting estimates and judgments.
When the fair values cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The input to these moedels is taken
from observabie markets where possibie. but where this 1s not feasible. a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values, The fair value of financial assets at FVOCT are enumerated in
Naofe 32,

Derermination of Fair Value of Investment Properties. PFRS requires disclosure of fair value of
mvestment properties when measured at cost.



The Group used the services of an independent professional appraiser in estimating the fair value of
properiies. The appraisers conducted an actual inspection of the property and considered the
following in the study and analyses in arriving at the estimate of fair value; (a) extent, character and
utility of the property: (b} sales and holding prices of similar properties; and (c¢) highest and best use
of the property. The description of valuation techniques used and kev iputs to fair valuation of
investment properties are enumerated in Note 15 of the consolidated financial statements.

Contingencies. The Group is currently involved in various claims and legal proceedings. The estimate
of the probable costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with legal
counsel handling the defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential results. The
Group currently does not believe that these proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the
Group’s financial position.

Secment Information

Business Segments
For management purposes. the Group is organized into business units based on its products and
services and has three reportable segments, as follows:

= The television and radio segment, which engages in television and radio broadcasting activities
and which generates revenue from sale of national and regional advertising time.

* The international subscription segment which engages in subscription arrangements with
mternational cable companies,

= Other businesses which include movie production, consumer products and other services.

The Executive Committee, the chief operating decision maker. and Management monitor the
operating results of ifs business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on net income or
loss and 15 measured consistently with the net income or 1oss in the consolidated financial staiements.
Omn a consolidated basis, the Group’s performance 1s evaluated based on consolidated net income for
the vear.

Cicographical Segments

The Group operates in two major geographical segments - local and intemational. Local refers to
revenues eamned in the Philippines, the home country. Significant portion of the reverues earned
locally pertain to television and radio airtime. International refers fo revenues earned in United States
and in other locations (which include Middle East, Europe, Australia, Canada, Guam, Singapore.
Hongkong and Japan). The Group ties up with cable providers to bring local television programming
outside the Phuilippines.

The Group’s revenues are mostly generated in the Philippines, which is the Group's coantry of
domicile.

Noncurrent assets consist of property and equipment, land at revalued amounts. investment properties
and intangible assets which are all located in the Philippines.

The Group does not have a single external customer whose revenue accounts for 10% or more of the
Group’s revenues.



Inter-sepment Transactions
Segment revenues, segment expenses and segment results include transfers among business segments

and among geographical segments. The transfers are accounted for at competitive market prices
charged to unrelated customers for sitnilar services. Such transfers are eliminated upon consolidation.

Measurement Basis

The amount of segment assets and labilities and segment profit or loss are based on measurement
principles that are similar to those used 1 measuring the assets and labilities and profit or loss in the
consolidated financial statements. which is in accordance with PFRS.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

2021 2020
Cash on hand and in hanks P2.919.451,027 B2 892 545281
Shori-term deposits 1.874,115,127 322,271 983

P4,793.566,154 P3.214817 264

Cash m banks earn interest at the respective bank deposif rates. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group.
and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rartes.

Interest income earned from bank deposits and short-term deposits amotnted to £16.24 million,
B13.72 miliion and #2291 million n 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Trade and Other Receivables

2021 2020
Trade:

Televiston and radic airtime PR, 136,404.457 £10,642,4753,005
Subscriptions 239,869,789 264493 491
Others 193.276.811 169,931,862

Nontrade:
Advances to officers and emplovees 9.363.276 6,866,866
Others (see Note 21) 114,786,867 149 288 785
_ 8,693.640,400 11,233,056.000
Less allowance for ECL 919,095,394 766.518.314

P7,784,545.006 210.466,537.695

Trade Receivables

Television and Radio Airiime. Television and radio airtime receivables are unsecured, noninterest-
bearing and are generally on 60-90 day terms upon receipt of wnvoice by the customers. The
recelvables are normalty coliected within 360 days.

Television and radio airtime receivables inciude unbilled airtime receivables, arising when
advertisements have been aired but billing or acceptance by the customer has been delayed due to
time ag in completing all required documents.

Subscriptions Receivable. Subscriptions receivable pertain to receivables from international channel
subscriptions and advertisements. These are unsecured, nominterest-bearing and normally collected

within 360 days.

Other Trade Receivables. Other trade receivables are unsecured. noninterest-bearing and are
generally on 60-80 day ferms upon receipt of invoice by the customers.

Nontrade Receivables

Advances to Officers and Emplovees and Other Nontrade Receivables. Advances to officers and

employees and other nentrade recetvables are noninterest-bearing and are normally collected within
the next financial vear.



Allowance for ECL on Trade Recelvables

The movements in the allowance for ECLs are as follows:

2621
Corporate Individual Total
Balance at beginning of year B756,208,776 £16.309,538 P766,518,314
Provision (reversal) for the vear
(see Note 24) 142,978,268 {401.188) 142577080
Balance at end of vear £899,187.044 £ 9,908,350 £009,095,364
2020
Corporate Individual Total
Balance af beginning of vear PB339,184.505 P10.455.097 P549,630.602
Provision (reversal) for the year
{see Note 24) 347.341 442 {143.539) 347,195 883

Writeoff

(130.317.171)

(130.317.171)

Bailance at end of vear

P756.208.776

P10.309,538

P766.518.314

Program and Other Rights

Details and movement in this account are as follows:

2021
Program Sterv/Format Program Rights -
Rights Rights Incidentals Total
Caost:
Balance at beginning of vear PRY4. 413,394 P27.147.444 B24,107.427 £045,608,265
Additions 955,453,367 4,657,217 109,848,747 1.069,959,331
Program and other rights
usage (see Note 233 {893.,937.251) (3.807.787) (109.602,757)  {1.607.347.795)
Balanee ar end of vear 955,929,510 27,996,874 24,353,417 1,008,279,801
Accumulated impairment in value (2.702.260) - - (2.702.268)
953.227.250 27.996.874 24,353,417 1.0048.577.341
Less noncurrent portion 240.982.378 - 240.982.378
Current portion BT712.244,872 B27.996,874 B24,353,417 R2764,595,163
2020
Program Storv/Format  Program Rights -
Rights Rights Incidentals Total

Cost:
Balance at beginning of vear
Additions
Program and other rights
usage (see Note 23)

PO83.090.591
336,438.931

(620,022,128}

PILO9Y 307 £26,790,291

P1.O41.4092 189
607,591,883

{HI3.415.807)

Balance at end of vear
Accumulated impairment in value

894,413,304
(2.702.260}

445,668,265
(702,260}

Less noncurrent porion

891711134
192,229,776

6.724.630 04.428.372
{10.276,493) (67, 117.186)
27147444 24107427
27,147 444 24,107.427

442,966,005
192,226 7740

Current porsion

POOG AR 358

P27 147 444 234107427

RB730.730.229




0. Inventories
This account consists of the following:
2021 2020
Merchandise inventory $1.120.260.877 B220,554,349
Matenals and supphies inventory 17,164,696 10,500,558
P1.137,4253573  P1,137.425.573
The following are the details of merchandise inventory account;
2021 2020
Set-top box model PO0O5,944,866 P178.627.462
ITE chipset dongle 214,316,011 41,926,887
P1,120,260.877 2220.554.,349
Merchandise inventory consists mainly of set-top boxes, digital TV mobile receiver and other
merchandises for sale by the Group. In 2020, the Group launched the GMA Affordabox, a digita) box
which allows users to receive clear pictures and sounds in their tefevision sets through digital
transmission. Cost of sales related to digital boxes amounted to 8418.14 million and B479 42 million
in 2021 and 2020, respectivelv.
Materials and supphes inventory includes the Group's office supplies, spare parts and production
materials.
10. Prepaid Expenses and Other Carrent Assets

2021 2020
Prepaid production costs P708,980.295 P428.553.144
Advances to suppliers (see Note 28) 607,253,805 844,130,982
Input VAT 225,923,751 191,780,897
Tax credits 169.447.579 174,199 496
Prepaid expenses 89,081,249 82,521,474
Creditable withholding taxes 55,474,553 55.821.536
Others 1,578,013 252,870

P1.857,730.245  B1.777.260.,299

Advances to suppliers are noninterest-bearing and are generaily applied to acquisition of program and
other rights, inventories, availment of services and others within the next financial year.

Prepaid production costs represent costs paid in advance prior 1o the arring of the programs or
episodes. The Group expects to air the related programs or episodes within the next financial vear.

Input VAT pertains to VAT on purchase or importation of goods and services which are 1o be
claimed and credited in the succeeding month’s filing of VAT return.

Tax credits represent claims of the Parent Company from the government arising from airing of
government commercials and advertisements. The Parent Company expects to utilize these rax
credits within the next financial vear,
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Prepaid expenses include prepayments for rentals, insurance and other expenses.

Creditable withholding taxes represent amounis withheid by the Group’s customers and is deducted
from the Group's income tax payabie.

. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

This account consists of the following:

2021 2020
Non-listed equity mstruments £92,936.018 74859083
Listed equity mstruments 23,775,258 117,273,005

P116,711.276 P1G2 132,088

Investment in equity instruments pertains to shares of stock and club shares which are not held for
trading. The Group assessed the equity instruments {0 be strategic in nature,

The movement of financial assets ai FVOC] are as foliows:

2021 2020
Balance at begmmng of vear P192.132.088 B243,433,060
Unrealized gain {loss) on fair value changes during
the vear {75420.812) {51.300.972)
Balance at end of vear P116,711.276 £102.132,088

Dividend mcome earned from financial agsets at FVOCT amounted fo nil in 2021, 2020 and
2019,

The movements in net unrealized loss on financial assets at FVOCT are as follows:

2021 2020

Balance at beginning of vear - net of {ax (B47.709.492) (B2.245 4543
Net unrealized gain (toss) on fair value changes

during the vear (75.420.812) (51,300.972)

Tax effect of the changes in fair market values 5,184,772 5.836.934

Balance at end of vear (B117.945.532) (P47.709,492)

IP E-Giames Ventures. Inc,

in 2015, IP E-Games Ventures, Inc. (IPE) 1ssued 13.000.00 million of its own common shares 1o the
Group in exchange of the Group’s investment in X-Play Online Games Incorporated (X-Play) and in
settlernent of 30.00 milizon advances and £50.00 million airtime credits granted by the Group to X-
Play, At mnitial recognition, the Group recognized at fair value the IPE shares amounting to

£130.00 miilion.

Of the £50.00 mullion airime credits, 822.00 mitflion has not been implemented at the date of
exchange and therefore was recognized by the Group as uncarned revenue presented as “Contract
liabilities™, mncluded as part of “Trade payables and other current Habilities™ in 2021 and 2020
{see Note 17}
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12. Investments and Advances

The following are the details of this account;

2621 2020
Investment in an associate and interests i joins
ventures P8§2,936.620 PE3.982,574
Advances to an associate and joint ventures
{see Note 21) 101,854,405 100.541.741
P184,791,0625 P184.524 315
The movements in the account are as foilows:
2021 2020
Investment in an associate and inferests m joint
ventures:
Acquisition cost -
Balance at beoinning and end of vear P131,722,056 P131.722.056
Accumulated equity in net losses:
Balance at beginning of vear (47,739,482) {51,648,222)
Equity i net earnings during the vear (1,045.954) 3,908,740
Balance at end of vear {48.785.436) {47,739 482)

82.936.620

83,982 574

Advances to an associate:

Balance at beginmng of year 97,722,016 97,121 830
Advances during the vear {see Note 21) 1,809,712 600,186
Balance at end of vear 99,531,728 97.722.016
Advances fo joint ventures:
Balance at beginning of vear 2,819,725 2,571,085
Advances during the vear (see Note 21) - 248.640
Pavments during the vear (497.048)
Balance af end of vear 2.322.677 2819725
Total investments and advances B184,791.025 P184,524,.315

The ownership inferests in joint ventures and an associate, which were all incorporated in the
Phalippmes, and are accounted for under the eguity method, as ar December 31, 2021 and 2020

follows:

Principal Activities

Percentage of
Ownership

Associate -

Mont-Aire Reaity and Development
Corporation (Moni- Aire)

Joint Ventures:
INQ7 interactive, Inc. (INQT*
Philippine Entertainment Portal (PEP)**
Gamespan, Inc, (Gamespan)**

*Not operational.

*Eindirect invesmment through GNAML

Real Estate

Internet Publishing
Internet Publishing
Betting Games

Direct Indireci
49 -
50

- 50
50



The carrying values of investments and the related advances are as follows;

2621
Advances
Investments {Note 21) Total
Asgsociate -
Moni-Aire E38.350.619 £99,531,728 P137.882.347
Joint ventures:
Gamespan 8,947,966 1.959.670 10,907,636
PEP 35,638,035 363,007 36,001,042
44,586.601 2.322,677 46.908.678
£82.936.620 P101.854,405 £184,791.025
2020
Advances
investments (Note 21) Total
Associate -
Moni-Aire £38.350,619 #97.722.016 £136.072,635
Joint ventures:
(ramespan 8,947 666 1,859,670 10,907,636
PEP 36,683,989 560,055 37,544 044
45,631,955 2819725 48,451,680

PB3.O82,574 P100.541.741 P184.524.315

The associate and joint ventures are not hsted in any pubtic stock exchanges.

PEP

On April 16, 2007, the Group and Surnmit Publishing, Co. entered into a shareholder’s agreement for
the establishment of PEP. The joint venture was organized o design, conceprualize, operate and
maintain websites that make available all kinds of show business, entertainment and celebrity
information, video or pictures in the internet worldwide web or other forms of seamless

conmmunication.

The Group recognized its share in net earnings (losses} of PEP amounting to (P1.03 million), #3.91
million and P13.42 milhion in 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Gamespan
On March 22. 2012, the Group, through GNMI, executed a Shareholder’s Agreement with Manila

Jockey Club {MIC) for the establishment of Gamespan. a jom{ venture corporatior:. The joint venture
was organized to operate and manage the hardware and software owned by MIC, set-up new media
mirastructure for offering and taking bets in horse racing and other sports.

Gamespan has not started 1is commercial operations since its establishment. In 2014, the Group and
MIC agreed to terminate its shareholder's agreement and 1o close Gamespan. As at December 31,
2020, the process of cessation of Gamespan 1s ongoing. Since Gamespan already ceased ifs
operations. the Group did not recognize any share n net earnings in 2021, 20260 and 2019,

INOT

Losses of INQ7 recognized under the equity method 1n excess of the Group’s carrving value of
investment were applied against its advances to the Parent Company thereby reducing both
advances and investments 10 zero as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, INQ7 ceased operations in



2007, In 2013, INQ7 submitted a request te kquidate its assets to SEC. The liquidation is stil}
ongoing as at December 31, 2020

The Group believes that its interests in joint ventures are not individually material. Aggregate
mformation of joint ventures that are not individually material are as {ollows:

2021 2020 2019

The Group’s share in income /

total comprehensive mncome {(B1.045,954) $3.908.740 $13.420,076
Aggregate carrying value

of the Group's interests

and advances 46,908,678 48,451,681 44,294 300

Moni-Aire
The table below shows the condensed financial information of Mont-Atre as at December 31, 2021
and 2020:

Current assets 39,665,203
Noncurrent assets 107,619,616

167,284,819
Current habiiities 1,066,320
Noncurrent liabilities 105,691,504

106,757,824
Net assets 60,526,995
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 44%;,
Carrving amount of investment £29 658228

Mont-Aire ceased its commercial operations in 2009, Assets include real estate and parcels of land
with an aggregate cost of B105.08 million and fair market value of P158.64 million. as determined by
an accredited appraiser as at June 3, 2019, enough to cover for the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment in Mont-Aire. Management believes that there are no evenis or changes in circumstances
indicating a significant unfavorable change in the fair value of the abovementioned properties from
the Tast appraisal made.
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Construction 1n progress pertains to costs incurred for instaliation of equipment, signal strengthening of
transmitters nationwide and construction/improvement of studios and stations in the regions.

The reclassification relates to the low value assets included under “Prepaid expenses and other current
asseis” amounting 1o £0.08 million in 2021 and the software that were ransferred to other noncurrent
asseis amounting 1o P14.65 million and £6.32 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Notes 1{) and
16).

The Group leases out a portion of its property and equipment at cost. Total rental income recognized for
the {eased portion amounted 10 £3.13 million, #2.95 million and £4.11 million in 2021, 2020 and 2019,

respectively (see Note 26).

The Group disposed various property and equipment in 2021, 2020 and 2019 resuliing ‘o the recognition
of gain on sale amounting to 5052 million, B17.25 million and £18.79 million, respectively {see Note
26).

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, no property and equipment have been pledged as collateral or
security for any of the Group's habihities.

. Land at Revalued Amounis

The movement of the land at revalued amount is shown below:

2021 2020
Revaluation Revaivation
Cast increment Total Cost Increment Tol
A beginning of vear B359.617.345 BPL4A43.578.839  BLBG3I.196,084 PISO6IT.345 PRA43STERIG P2EO3,196,184
Additions during the vear 142.100,838 - 142 100830
At end of vear BEOLIRITA B2A435TR.BIG B2 048297004 JSO61T 35 PRA4T STER3Y PR.E03.196.184

Land used i operations was last appraised on November 19, 2018 by an accredited firm of appraisers
and 1s valued in terms of its highest and best use While the fair value of the land was not determined as
at December 31, 2021, the Group's management believes that the fair values as at December 31, 2018
approximate the fair values as at December 31, 2021,

On February 23, 2021, the Group acquired fots 1n Antipolo Rizal amounting to 249 .69 million for
envisioned site of GMA Antipolo DTT Station which will serve to house the possible disaster recovery
rransmission facilities. On November 22, 2021, the Group acquired two adiacent lots located on the
northeast side of Samar Avenue. within Barangay South Triangle, Diliman District. Quezon City
amounting to B92.41 mitlion. Management believes that the fair values as at acquisition date
approxirmates the fair values as at December 31, 2021.

The fair value was determined using the “Market Data Approach” as determined by independent
professionally qualified appraisers. The fair value represents the amount that would be received to sell
the property in an orderiy transaction between market participants at the date of valuation. The
description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to fair valuation are as follows:

Significant
Valuation Technigue Unobservable Inpuis Range
Land Market comparable assefs Price per square metre B200-297 000
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The fair value is categorized under Leve] 3 of the fair value hierarchy and represents the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to mansfer a liability in an orderiv transaction between market
participants at the measurement date in accordance with International Valuation Standards,

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, no land has been pledged as collateral or security for any of the
Group's liabilities and the Group has ne restrictions on the realizability of its fand and no contractual
obligation to purchase, construct or develop land or for repairs, mamtenance and enhancements,

{5, investment Properties

2021
Land and Buildings and
improvements Improvements Total
Cost:
Balance af beginning and end of vear £23,761.823 B72.276,684 £26,038,507
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at beginning of vear - 57,316,032} 57.316,032
Depreciation during the year
(see Note 24) - 1,382,387 1.382.387
Balance at end of year - 58,698,419 58.698.419
Accumuiated impairment:
Balance at beginning and
end of year - 3,852,641 3.852.041
£23,761.823 P 0,725.024 £33,487.447
2020
[Land and Buildings and
Improvements Improvements Total

Cost:
Balance at beginning of year
Disposals

223.761.823

B72.276.084

PO6.038.507

Balance at end of vear

23.761.823

72.276.684

96.038.507

Accumulated depreciation:

Ralance at beginning of vear

Depreciation during the year
(see Note 24)

Disposais

Ay
th
-
Lad
Lk

3.064

L

[#)

8138

~3

Balance at end of vear

5

]

316,032

Accumulated impairment:

Balance at beginning and end of

year

3.852.641

Balance at end of vear

R23.761.823

3.852 641
1.1

£11,108.011

34,860,834

The Group disposed investment properties in 2019 resultng to the recognition of gain on sale
amounting 1o P2.58 million (see Note 26).

The fair value of nvestment properties owned by the Group amounted to 203 .90 million as at
December 31, 2021 and 2020. The land was last appraised on November 19, 2018 by an accredited
appraiser and was valoed in terms of its highest and best use. The fair value of the land was not
determined as at December 31, 2021, While the fair value of the land was not determimed as at
December 31, 2021, the Group’s management believes that the fair values as at December 31, 2018
approximate the fair values as at December 31, 2021,
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The fair value was determined using the “Market Data Approach”™. The fair value represents the amount
that would be received 10 sell the property in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
date of valuation.

The description of the valuanion technigues used and key inputs to fair valuation are as follows:

Significant

Valuation Techmique  Unobservable Inputs Range
Land Market comparable assets Price per square mermre B1.400-23.500

Bulldings for lease  Market comparabie assets  Price per square metre  £22,000-B117.000

The fair value 1s categorized under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and represents the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a hability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

Rental income and the directly related expense arising from these investment properties follow:

2021 2020 2619

Rental income {see Note 26) £3.061.017 P3,945.824 B4.450.061
Depreciation expense (see Note 24) (1,382,387) (1.382.387) (1421.877)

P1.678,630 P2,363 437 BI1.0O28. 184

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, no investment properties have been pledged as collareral or security
for any of the Group’s habilities and the Group has no restriction on the realizability of its investment
properties and no contractual obligation to purchase. construct or develop investment properiies or for
repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

16.

Other Noncurrent Assets
. 2021 2020
Software costs £113,208.864 BOT.071.54]
Restricted cash 52722,572 42 348,999
Deferred mnput VAT 37.367.138 30,772,633
Facilities 19,788,434 2,354,591
Refundable deposits 22.165.836 21427422
Investient 1n artworks 16,186,136 10,186,136
Advances (0 contraciors 3.247.500 15,704,809
Guarantee deposits 1,975,638 6412119
Deferred production costs 1.196.276 1.061.628
Development costs — 5,767,800
Others 1.715.685 2,696,079

B263.574.079 P235.808.847

Software costs relate w software applications and website development costs which provide an edge on
the Group’s enline presence and other soffware issues.

Restricted cash pertains to time deposits under the custody of the courts as a collateral for pending
lingation.
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Deferred input VAT pertains to the VAT on the Group’s acquisitions of capital goods exceeding
£1.00 million m any given month which are to be ameorrized over the 60 months or the life of the asset,
whichever 1s shorter.

Guarantee and other deposits consist of the Meralco refund and refundable rental deposits used for
Parent Company’s programs.

Advances to contractors pertain to advance pavments made by the Parent Company for the construction
of assets to be clagsified as property and equipment.

Investment in artworks are paintings and other works of art usually displayed in the Parent Company’s
hallways.

Facihities relate to the paid deposit for facilities used for productions by the Group.

Deferred production costs periain to the costs incurred in relation to the production of music compact
discs and are measured at cost upon recognition. Deferred production costs are being amortized as the

related compact discs are sold.

The movements in software costs follows:

2021 2020

Cost:
Balance at beginning of year £468.708,120 P451.769.256
Additions during the year 51,190,237 10,616,139
Reclassifications during the vear (see Note 13) 14,653,732 6.322.725

Balance at end of vear

534,552,089

468,708,120

Accumulated amortization:

Balance at beginning of vear 371,636,579 331,372,506
Amortization during the vear (see Nore 24) 49,706.646 40.264.073
Balance at end of vear 421,343,225 371.636.379
P113,208.864 POT 071,541 .
17. Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities
2021 2020
Pavable to governmeni agencies P1.501,080,957 £1.693373218
Trade payables 352701473 517.862.437
Contract habilities {see Note 11} 130,479,722 35.908,512
Accrued expenses;

Pavroll and talent fees (see Note 27) 179,251.966 232,299 305
Utilities and other expenses 133,553,938 285.296,940
Production costs 129,164,437 67,809,420

Commission 50,009,144 44.859.071
Customers” deposits 46,034,193 41,685,087
Others 74.888.140 58.788.937
P2,697.163.970  B2.977 884 927

Pavable to government agencies is composed of the Group’s statutory compensation-reiated

coniributions to government agencies and net VAT and withholding taxes payable to the Bureau of



S48 -

Internal Revenue (BIR). The difference berween the accrual accounting under the accounting standards
and cash-basis accounting as prescribed by the BIR for service-related companies caused the Group to
normally incur deferred output VAT which forms a substantial part of the Group’s payable 1o
government agencies. These pavables are remitied within 30 days after reporting period.

Trade payables to suppliers are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled on terms ranging from
seven to 60 days.

Customers’ deposits include guaranty deposits from advertising agencies (o secure payment of bills by
advertisers, These deposits are nomnterest-bearing and normally refunded once the related broadcasts
are paid by the advertisers. It also includes deposits from the Group’s tessees upon inception of the

lease agreements.

Contract lizbilities pertain to pavments received before broadcast and before delivery of goods and
services. These are recognized as revenue when the Group performs the obligation under the contract,
This account also includes contract liabilities of #22.00 million resulting from the sale of the Group’s
imterests in X-Play in 2015 (see Note 11).

Accrued expenses and other payables are noninterest-bearing and are generally settled within the next
financial year.

Others melonde unpaid subscriptions and refention pavables. These are noninterest-bearing and are
normally settled within one vear.

. Short-term Loans

The Parent Company obtained unsecured short-term peso and US dollar-denominated loans from local
banks in 2020 and 2019, Details and movements of the short-term loans are as foliows:

2021 2020
Balance at beginnimg of vear B720,345 800 £400,000.000
Avatlments 4.479,150,060 084,340,000
Pavmenis (4.542.575.,000) {641,895.000}
Revaluation 82.565.500 (22,100,000
Balance at end of vear £739.485,500 $720,345.000

The outstanding loans as at December 31. 2021 and 2020 consist of fixed rate notes with the followmg
details:

Interest Rate

Lender  Currency Amount {per annum) Terms 2021 2020
Availed in 2021;

Citibank  USD $14.500.000 L.66%% pavable in 311 days B739 845 500 -
Availed 1 2020:

Citibapk  USDao B15.000.000 1.80% payable in 182 days - R72.345.000

Interest expense on peso denominated loans amounted to 22,60 million, B4.33 miliion and
£46.18 mitlion 1n 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively, Interest expense on US dollar denominated loans
amounted to 15,03 million. B7.67 million. and £10.78 million in 2021, 2020, and 2019. respectively.
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19. Obligations for Program and Other Rights

Obligations for program and other rights represent liabilities to foreign and local film suppliers
for program and other rights purchased by the Group. Ouistanding unpaid balance as at
December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted fo 223 82 million and £176.18 million, respectively.
Obligations for program and other rights are generally payable in equal monthly or quarterly
installments.

20. Equity
a. Capitai Stock

Details of capital stock as at December 31, 2021 and 2020:

No. of Shares Amount
2021 2026 2021 2020
Common - P1.00 par value
Authorized 5,000,000,000  3.000.000.00¢  B5.000,000.000 £5.000.000.000
Subscribed and issued 3.364.092,000  3.364.692.000 $£3,364.692 000 P23 364,652,000
Preferred - £0.20 par value
Authorized 7,500.060.000  7.500.000.000 PL500,000.600 P1.500.000,060

Subscribed and issued 7.500,000.600  7.500.000.0060  £1,500,000,000 #1.500.000,000

Treasury shares:

Commeon - 3.6435.000 P 23.645,000
Preferred - 492 816 - 08,563
B £3.743.563

Underlying shares of the
acguired PDRg - 750,000 P B750.060

The cumulative preferred shares are of equal rank, preference and priority and are identical in all
respect regardless of series. Preferred shares are participating at the rate of one fifth (1/5) of the
dividends paid to common shares, the rate of which is adjusted proportionatetv by the Parent
Company’s BOD consequent to any stock split or stock dividend declaration affecting the common
shares and preferred shares. Preferred shares are convertible at the option of the shareholders at the
ratio of five preferred shares to one common share, based on par value.

Preferred shares enjoy priority over common shares in the distribution of assets of the Parent
Company in the event of dissolution and liquidation, at such rates. terms and conditions as the BOD
may determine. Each preferred share is entitled to one vote and shall have the same voting rights as
the common shares.

The Parent Company’s BOD may specify other terms and conditions, qualifications, restrictions and
privileges of the preferred shares or series/classes thereof. insofar as such terms, conditions,
qualifications, restrictions and privileges are not inconsistent with the articles of incorporation and
any applicable law or regulation.
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The following summarizes the information on the Parent Company’s registration of securities with
the SEC which was approved on June 20, 2007, as required by Revised Securities Regulation Code
(SRC) Rule 68:

‘ Authorized and Issue/Offer

Securities 15sued shares Price

Initial public offering 91,346,000 PE.50

Underlying common shares of PDRs 945432000 8.50

Owver-aliotment common shares 13,701,000 8.50
Common shares covering employee stock option

plan 57,000,000 8.50

In prior years, the Parent Company has acquired 750,000 PDRs issued by GMA Holdings, Inc. at
acquisition cost of P5.79 million. In as much as each PDR share grants the holder, upen payment of
the exercise price and subject to certain other conditions, the delivery of one (1) Parent Company
share or the sale and delivery of the proceeds of such sale of Parent Company share, such PDRs
held by the Parent Company 1s being treated similar to a treasury shares.

Retained Earnings
The retained earnings of the Parent Company 1s restricted for the pavment of dividends to the extent
of nit and #34.27 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, representing the cost of shares held in

treasury and underlying shares of the acquired PDRs amounting to nil in 2021 and B28 .48 million
and P5.79 million, respectively 1 2020.

The Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration of the following cash dividends:

Cash Dividend Total Cash
Year Declaration Date Record Date Per Share Dividend Declared
2021 March 26, 2021 April 22, 2021 B1.35 P6.561.267.889
2020 June 8, 2020 hune 24,2020 P3G 21,458 056,531
2019  March 29, 2019 April 22, 2019 £0.45 £2.187 089 297

The Parent Company’s cutstanding dividends payabie amounted to #25.59 million and
£19.89 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

On March 25. 2022, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration and distribution of cash
dividends amounting to BT.45 per share totaling 27,053.80 million to all stockholders of record as at
April 25,2022 and wiil be paid on May 17, 2022,

The balance of retained eamings includes Parent Company’s accumulated equity in net earnings of
subsidianies and associates which are not currently availabie for dividend declaration until declared
by the respective subsidiaries and associates amounting to 8106.07 million and

B103.05 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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21. Related Party Disclosures

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability. directly and indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject 1o common control. Related
parties may be individual or corporate entities.

The Parent Company has an approval requirement such that material related party transactions (RPTs)
shall be reviewed by the Audit and Risk Management Commiittee (the Committee) and submitted to the
BOD for approval. Material RPTs are those transactions that meet the threshold value amounting to ten
percent (10%) or higher of the Company’s toral consolidated assets based on its latest audited financial
statements etther individually, or in aggregate over a twelve (12)-month period with the same relared
party.

Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured and settlement oceurs in cash throughout the financial
year. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.
For years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group has not recorded any impairment of
receivables on amounts owed by the related parties. The assessment is undertaken each financial vear
through examining the financial posifien of the refated party and the market in which the related party
operates.

In the ordinary course of business, the Group transacts with associate, affiliates, joint venture and other
related parties on advances, reimbursement of expenses, and future stock subscriptions.

The transactions and balances of accounts as at and for the vears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
with related parties are as follows:

Amount/
Account Name and Volume of
Category Reiated Pariy Year  Transactions Receivables Terms Conditions
Advances {see Now 127 Associare:
Momt-Adre 2021 21809712 P09 331,728 Noninterest- Unsecured:
2020 600186 07722016 bearing nol impared
Joint ventares:
Camespan 2023 - 1.356.04%  Nomnleresi- Linsecured:
2020 1.939.670 bearing not impatred
PP 021 363.007 Nonmieresi- Unseoured;
2020 245,040 860,055 bearing not impaired
INGYT? 2021 115344000 Noninterest- Unsecured;
20 - 11,324.000 hearing fully impaired
Total 2021 P1.809.712 £112,794.784
2024 PRAT BZA P1I2.083.74)
Nontrade Receivables
Retmbursable charges Common
{see Note 7) stockholders:
UOMA Kapuso 2021 B B1.356.04%  On demand. Uinsecured;
Foundation nc. 2020 R 167042 3.361.550 NONINErest- not tmpaired
hearing
Legal, consulting and Belo, Goron, Elma 2028 18,517,527 On demand. Unsecured;
retainers” fees Law 20120 13711013 noninterest- not impaired
bearing
Totai 2021 B19.817,527 £1.356.049
2020 14,878 087 3361350

The advances made by the Parent Company to Mont-Aire and PEP are intended for furure capital
subscription. On the other hand, the advances to INQ7 were fully impaired as a result of the application
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of the Group’s share in the losses of INQ7 recognized under the equity method in excess of the Group's
carrying value of inmvestment.

Compensation of Kev Management Personnel
The compensation of key management personnel of the Group, by benefit type, are as follows:

2021 2020 2019

Salaries and other long-term
benefits (see Notes 24 and 25) £993,291.360 PO13,703,843 P711,908.901

Pension benefits
{see Notes 24 and 25) 190.689.516 165,255 983 95810977
P1,183,980,876 P21 (75059826 PRO7 728 878

Pension benefits under OCT amounted o (B313 .83 million). B454.32 million and P171.62 million as of
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Equity Investments of the Retirement Fund

The Group’s retirement fund includes equity investments in GMA Network, Inc. and GMA PDRs
amounting to B11.22 mllion and P962.98 nullion in 2021, respectively, and P41.78 million and
£331.39 million in 2020, respectively (see Note 27).

. Revenues

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenues from contract with customers for the vear
ended December 31:

2021 2020 2016

Revenue source
Sale of service

Advertising revenue £21.015.167,014 R17.727.494.901 PI5.173.925.007

Subscription revenue (see Note 28) 786.471.873 911.005.081 1.056.700,874

Revenue from distribution and content provisioning 41.962.566 63.653.634 89 350,710

Produciion revenue 78.698.883 46,947 752 173,473,621
Sale of goods 528.023.001 383.794.170 -
Total revenue from contracts with customers £27.450,323.397 P19.2335.895 538 $16,493 452270
Geographical markets

Local PILS2L575.148 RIS311.968.706 P13 288203657

International 028.748,249 1.023.926.832 1.2035.158.555
Total revenue from contracts with castomers P22.450.323.397 P19.335.893 538 R16,493,452.212
Timing of revenue recegnition

Goods/services transferred at a point in tme P21,603.851.524 PIS424.890.457 P15.436,751.338

Services fransferred over time 786.471.873 G11.005.681 1.056,700.874

‘Fotal revenue from contracts with customers P22,450.323.397 P193335 RO5 338 P16,493452.017
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23, Production Costs

2021 2020 2019
Talent fees and production personnel costs
(see Note 25) P2.251,169.738 B1L705.667.865 $£2.047.995 874
Program and other nghts usage
(see Note §) 1007347795 703.415.807 988.703.737
Facilities and amortization of production services 567,428,491 460.116.613 §15.967.334
Rental {see Note 28) 344,890,966 210,239.33- 812.006.080
Depreciation (see Notes 13 and 24) 262,708,006 164,636,078 168.,170.547
Tapes. sets and production supplies 233,146,587 142,401,105 533.463.632
Transportation and communication 209,857,422 65.658.557 165,846,561

P4.876.549.005 #3452, 138359 P6.435.153.765

ad

24. General and Administrative Expenses

2021 2020 201¢
Personnel costs {see Note 23) B4.858.098.218 45235101340 P4.127.118.304
Professional fees 353199611 305.734.976 202,048,149
Depreciation {(see Notes 13, 15 and 28) 345,065,031 380,936,123 409,533,900
Communication. Hght and water 273,962,056 235.051.327 317.381.955%
Taxes and licenses 135,505,518 182,104,942 174.361.923
Repairs and maintenance 221,155,954 144785132 173414414
Provision for ECL (see Note 7} 142,577,080 347.195.883 18.297.347
Advertising 117.274,073 84 866,607 257.877.219
Software maintenance 99,307,025 81.430.010 78.875.726
Research and surveys 87,958,450 G1.769.435 66.103 888
Marketing expense 86,992,865 55.136.499 87.255.502
Security services 65.559.440 66.865.570 69,686,404
Facilities refated expenses 58,691,533 69849171 64.498.25]
Amortization of software costs (see Note 16) 49,706,646 40.264.073 26788380
Transportation and travel 34,717,950 54.407.006 57.432.446
Insurance 303,673,665 29.028.379 31241255
Janitorial services 24,026,812 22.863.032 25805533
Rental (see Note 28) 20915132 9.603.762 11,967.304
Materials and supplies 15,706,090 12,525 .485 17505157
Freight and bandling 16.913.834 6.002.430 6.415.072
Dues and subscriptions 10,881,727 8.254.003 8.382.407
Entertammment, amusement and recreation 7,001,601 8452628 13105672
Others 104,440,189 85,409 098 80.270.317

B7.260.929.700 20847818011 P6.325.456.794

Others include expenses incurred for messengerial services, other manpower, donations and other
miscellaneous expenses.




Depreciation

2021 2020 2019
Property and equipment {see Noie 13)
Production costs {see Note 13) B262,708.006 P164.630.075 PI68 170,547
General and administrative expenses 316,571,836 351,775,781 377.44R 970
579,279,842 516,414,859 345010517
Right-of-use assels (see Note 28)
General and adminisirative expenses 27,110,808 27.777.955 30.663.033
Investment properties (see Note [5}
General and administrative expenses 1,382,387 1.382.387 1.421.877
Bo07.773,037 P343.375.201 BST77.704.447
25. Personnel Costs
2021 2020 2019
Salaries and wages B1.710,384.916 P2.578.012.608 £23058190.824

Talent fees 2,162,673,003 1.617.514.239  2,862,447.231
Employee benefits and allowances 1,414.885,770 1245873078  1.346.669.079
Pension expense {see Note 27) 639,758,700 640,198,143 402,269,767
Sick and vacation leaves expense 182.165477 143,170,237 157.968.277
P7,109.867.956  £06.230.769.205 P7.075.114.178
The above amounts were distributed as follows:
2021 2020 2019
Production costs (see Note 23) P1.251,169,738 #£1.705.667.865 £2.947.995 874
General and administrative expenses {see Note 24} 4,858.698.218 4.525101.340 4.127.118.304
£7.109.867,956  £6.230.769.205 £7.075.114.178
26. Others - Net
2023 2020 2019
Commission from Artist Center 77,547,912 P45 128,337 P4 633 736
Net gain on sale of property and equipment and
investment properties (see Notes 13 and 15} 50.519.791 [7.250.932 21.368.206
VAT difference on sales to government per Revenue
Regulations 16-2003 - 10.218,187 6.701.0064
Rental income (see Notes 13, 15 and 28) 6,189,154 0.894,304 £.561.148
Merchandising hcense fees and others 3,455,733 2,540,037 8.651.427
Bank charges (1.480,483) (1.411.850) {2.281.842)
Others 1,625,013 4.545.220 3.132.824
P137.857.160 P82 174.767 P87.766.566

Merchandising license fees and others include income from mall shows, sale of DVDs and integrated

recerver decoders and dividend 1ncome (see Note 11).



27. Pension and Other Employee Benefits

As at December 31, pension and other employee benefits consist of:

2021 2020
Pension Hability £4,169,680,751 R4.915,125 689
Vacation and sick Jeave accrual 399,171,250 355,988,220
4,568,858,001 5271,113.909

Less current portion of vacation and sick leave
accrual® 5,422,020 6,285,766
Pension and other long-term emplovee benefits P4.574,280,021 £5264.828,143

*ncluded in “decrued expenses T under Trade pavables and other current liabitivies (see Note 17,

Pension Benefits
The Group operates non-contributory defined benefit retirement pians.

Under the existing regulatory framework, R.A. 7641 requires a provision for retirement pay 1o qualified
private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity. provided however that the
employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and other agreements shall not be less
than those provided under the law. The law does not require minimum funding of the plan.

Pension benefits recognized in the statemenis of comprehensive income are as follows (see Note 25):

2021 2020 20619

Current service cost P437.943,972 R438.234.725 P234.746,730
Net interest cost 186,984,422 207963418 167.463.037
Settlement loss 14.830,306 - -
2639.758,700 P646.195.143  P402 200767

Net pension Hability recognized in the consohidated statements of financial position is as follows:

2021

2020

2019

Present value of defined benefit obiigation
Fair value of plan assets

P6,348.352.226
2.178,665.475

P6.359,224 091
1.444 (98,402

£3,084.474.739
1250881671

Pension lability

£4,169.686,731

24015 125 689

P2.733.503,128

The changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2021

2020

2019

Balance at beginning of vear

P6,359,224,001

3084 474,739

P3.180,957.326

Current service cost 437,943,972 438,234,725 234,746,730
[nterest cost 244,726,249 306,876,071 242,805,975
Settlernent loss 14,834,300 -
Benefits paid:

From plan assets (197.265,904) (189220662} (110.058.955)

From Group’s own funds (36,744,104) {0.686,893) (7.955.884)
Remeasurement losses (gamns};

Changes in financial assumpiions (7T11.238384) 1.330.340.213 778,107,846

Changes in demographic assumptions 3.217.007 (10.076,008) -

Experience adjustment 233,658,393 308.260,904 (3533.228.200)
Balance at end of vear £60,348,352.226 P6.330.224 091 P3I OR4 474,730




The changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

2021 2020 2019
Balance at beginning of vear P1,444,098,402 R1.250.881.611  $997.963.101
Conmribution during the vear 339,594,487 259.0600.000 266,448 811
Interest income 87,741,827 Q8913 553 75342938
Benefits paid {197,265,904) (189229662}  (110.938.953)
Remeasurement gain - return on plan assets 534,496,663 24.532 900 22.085.626
Balance at end of vear P2.178.665475 £1.444.008402 B1.250.881.61]

Remeasurement gain on retirement ptans amounting to B575.62 million in 2021 and remeasurement loss
on retirement plans amounting to £1,261.62 nuilion and 300.70 million reported under the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in 2020 and 2019, respectively, is presented net of
deferred tax.

At each reporting period, the Group determines its contribution based on the performance of its
retirement fund.

The Group expects to confribute P290.00 million to the fund in 2022,

The funds are managed and supervised by trustee banks for the benefits of the members. However, the
generat admimstration of the funds i1s vested in a Retirement Commitiee.

The foliowing table presents the carrving amounts and estimated fair values of the plan assets:

2021 2020

Carrying Carrying

Value/Fair Value Value/Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents 2176,916,929 R4T 228384
Equity instruments {see Note 21}

GMA PDRs 962,978,924 531,387,630

GMA Networl, Inc. 11.219,115 41,784,000

Debt instruments -

Government securities 338.675,992 668,120 819

Unil Investment Trust Funds (UITFs) 740,790,995 361.468 966

Others (51,916 480 99,603

P1,178,665475  P1.444,098 402

The plan assets consist of the following:

= Cash and cash equivalents consist of reguiar savings and time deposits.

» Investments in equity mstruments consist of listed shares of GMA Network, Inc. and GMA PDRs
(see Noie 21). Changes in the fair market value of these mvestments resulted to 233,37 million gain
i1 2021, 23.95 million gain in 2020 and B16.91 million loss in 2019,

= [Investments in debt instruments bear imterest ranging from 3.00% to 6.30% and have maturities
from April 2022 1o March 2025, Equity and debt instruments held have quoted prices in active
market.

= Investment in UITFs are measured at their net asset value per unit amounting to P258 .89 and
B255.39 as at December 31. 2021 and 2020, respectively.

*  Others consist of loans and receivables which are collectible within the next twelve months.

The person who exercises voting rights over shares 1s within the powers of the Trustee. who do not have
any refationship with the directors or officers of the Group.
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The plan assets are pnmarily exposed to financial risks such as Hquiditv risk and price risk.

Liquidity risk pertains to the plan’s abilify to meet its obligation to the employees upon retirement.

To effectively manage liquidity risk, the Board of Trustees invests al least the equivalent amount of
actuanially computed expected compulsory retirement benefit payments for the vear to Hquid/semi-
liquid assets such as treasury notes, treasury bills. and savings and time deposits with commmercial banks.

The Group performs an Asset-Liability Matching Study {ALM) annually. The principal techatique of
the Group’s ALM 1n order to minimize the portfolie liquidation risk is to ensure that the expected return
on assets will be sufficient to support the desired level of funding arising from the defined benefit plans.

Price risk pertains mainly to fluctuations in market prices of equity securities Hsted in the Philippine
Stock Exchange. In order to effectively manage price risk. the Board of Trustees continuously assesses
these risks by closely monitoring the market value of the securities and implementing prudent
mvestment strategies.

However, in the event a benefit claim anses under the retirement plan and the retirement fund is not
sufficient to pay the benefit. the unfunded portion of the claim shall immediately be due and pavable to
the retirement fund from the Group.

‘The principal assumptions used in determining persion liablity for the Group's plans are shown below:

2021 2020 2019
Discount rafe 3.10-5.13% 3.10-7.70% 4.13-7.70%
Expected rate of salary increase 4.00-5.60% 4.00-5.00% 1.44-5.00%
Turn-over rates:
19-24 years old 7.50-11.67% 7.26-9.48% 4.00-36.00%
25-29 vears old 6.00-9.23% 5.56-7.88% 6.00-70.060%
30-34 years old 3.86-12.99% 3.70-6.14% 4.40-24.00%
33-39 years old 2.50-6.54% 2.69-4.22% 2.00-12.00%
40-44 years old 2.006-6.58% 2.00-3.81% 2.00-10.00%
=45 years old 0.08-3.36% (.00-3.05% 1.30-2.00%

The sensitivity analysis below has been detenmined by remeasuring the defined benefit obligation at the
reporting period after first adjusting one of the current assumption that were reasonably possible at the
valuation date while all other assumptions remained unchanged. It should be noted that the changes
assummed to be reasonably possible at the valuation date are open to subjectivity, and do not consider
more complex scenarios 1n which changes other than those assumed may be deemed to be more
reasonable.

Increase
{Decrease) in Increase (Decrease} in Defined Benefit Obligation
Basis Points 2021 2020 2010
[Mscount rate 30 (P290.833,103)  (B320,849.879) (FI90.958 480}
{50} 314,460,163 348 403.037 202.730.781
Future salary increases 50 315,633,737 346.062.010 210769378

(50) (294,598,995) {321.818.707) {194.862.800)
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Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as at December 31, 2021

Less than one vear P718.887.410
More than 1 vear to 3 vears 1,922,473 331
More than 3 vears to 7 years 2,900,933 586
More than 7 vears to 135 years 4.206988.115
More than 15 vears to 20 vears 5,115,087.405
More than 20 vears 7.843,916,762

Other Lone-Term Emplovee Benefits

Other long-term emplovee benefits consist of accumulated and unexpired emplovee sick and vacation
leave entitlements. Noncurrent portion of other emplovee benefits amounted to £393.75 million and
P349.7 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, while current portion of other employee
benefits recorded in “*Accrued payroll and talent fees™ included under “Trade and other current
Habiliies™ account amounted to £5.42 million and $6.29 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively (see Note 17).

. Agreements

Lease Aoreements

Group as a Lessee

The Group entered info various lease agreements for land, building. studio and office spaces that it
presently occupies and uses for periods ranging from two to 12 vears. The lease agreements can be
renewed subject to mutual agreement. Most of the lease agreements can be terminated at the option of
the Group while the termination option in the lease agreements of NMI, a subsidiary is subject to mutual
agreement. Previously, these leases were clessified as operating leases under PAS 17, Leases.

The Group also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Group apphes the “short-
term lease” recognition exemptions for these leases.

The rollforward analysis of right-of-use assets folows:

2021
Righr-of-use:
Right-of-use: Buildings, studic Right-of-use:
Land and office spaces Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of vear P94.,553.476 £47,768,092 £142.261,568
Additions 26,127,188 35,639.216 61.706.318
Balance at the end of vear 120.680.584 83.347.302 204,027,886
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 28,798,918 14,194 374 52,993,202
Depreciation (see Note 24) 12,853,827 14,256,981 27,116,808
Balance at the end of vear 41.652.745 38.451.355 80,104,100

Net Book Value B79,027.839 #44,895.947 P123.923.786
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2020

Right-of-use:

Right-of-use:  Buildings, studio and

Land

office spaces

Right-of-use:
Total

Cast
Balance at beginning of year
Pre-termimation

BO4 553476

P65.0O11.763
(18.203.671)

P166.465.230
(18,203,671

Balance at the end of vear 94,353,476 47.708.002 142,261 568
Accumuated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 16,797 383 13865670 30.663.053
Depreciation {see Note 243 12,001,333 15,776,420 27.777.955
Pre-termination {5.447.716) (5,447 716}
Balance at end of vear 28.798.918 24,194,374 52,063,202
Net Book Value P65, 754 358 £23 513,718 2RO 268,276
The roliforward analvsis of lease liabilities follows:

2021 2020
Balance at beginning of vear P76,856,072 B105788,113
Additions 60.877,091 -
Accretion of interest 8.396,879 5,817.214
Payments (26,744,140) (21,762,363)
Pre-termination - (12,956,894
Balance at end of vear $119,385,902 P76.856,072

2021 2020
Current portion 217,475,682 $10.485,205
Noncurrent portion 101,910,220 66,370,777
Balance at end of vear B119.385.902 276,836,072

The rollforward aralvsis of dismantling provision follows:

2021 2020
Balance at begimning of vear 244,973,410 P42.392.195
Accretion of interest 2,209,528 2,581,215
Termination (1.085,486) -
Balance at end of vear £46.097.449 844 073 410

The following are the amounts recognized in the conselidated statement of comprehensive income:

2021 2020

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

(see Note 24) 227,110,808 BT 777955
Interest expense on lease habilities 8.396.879 3.817.214
Interest expense on dismantling provision 2,209,525 2,581.215
Expense refating to short-term feases (inchuded in

“Production costs™) {see Note 23} 344,890,966 210.239.334
Expense relating to short-term leases

{inciuded in “General and Admimstrative

expenses”) {see Note 24) 20,915,132 9,603,762
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Shown below is the maturity analvsis of the undiscounted lease payments:

2021 2020
1 year $23,362.036 B15550.271
more than 1 year to 2 vears 20,613,087 14,079,568
more than 2 years to 3 years 18,751,169 12,759,983
more than 3 vears to 4 vears 17,198,705 10,992,270
More than 3 vears 44,119,711 45,501,281

Also. In June 2012, the Parent Company agreed to extend its non-cancellable Co-production/ Blocktime
Rental Agreement with ZOE Broadcasting Network, Inc. {ZBN) for another

seven {7} vears from June 2012 to May 2019, On the first year of the contract renewal, the Parent
Company shall pay ZBN an amount equivalent to total payments from June 2011 1o May 2012, subject
to vearly escalation of 10.00%. The agreement has ended in May 2019, The rental expense recognized
on the agreement with ZBN amounted to £77.03 million in 2019,

Total rental expense on short-term leases amounted to £219.84 million and P746.94 million in 2020 and
2019, respectively (see Notes 23 and 24).

Group as Lessor. The Group leases out certain properties for a pertod of one vear, renewable annually.
The leased-out properties include investment properties, and broadcasting equipment. Total rental
income amounted to P6.89 million and P&.56 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively {see Note 26).

Subscrniption Agreements

The Parent Company entered inte vartous subscription agreements with intemational cable providers for
the airing of 1ts programs and shows abroad. The agreements generally have terms of three to five vears
and are based on certain agreed service package rates.

Total sabscription revenue amounted 1o £786.47 miliion, 291 1.00 mullion and B1,056.70 million in
2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively {(see Note 22).

Purchase Agreement for Set-top Boxes

In 2021 and 2020, the Parent Company entered mto several contracts with Ablee Electronic Company
Limited for the supply of set-top boxes with complete accessories. Total purchases amounted to
£1.377.00 million and £896.80 million m 2021 and 2020, respectively. As at December 31, 2021, total
advances for set-top boxes to be delivered in 2022 amounted to £441.27 million (see Note 9},

29. Income Taxes

Current income Tax
The current income tax consists of the following:

2021 2020 2019

RCIT P2.400,604,067 £2.728.600.117 £1.200.77L8R7
MCIT 30,603 50.423 6,256
P2.400.634,070 £2.728.650.540 £1.200.778.143

ot
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The reconciliation between the statutory income tax rates and effective income tax rates are shown

below:
2021 2020 2019

Stamitory incoine iax 25.00% 30.009% 30.00%
Additions (deductions) in income tax

resulting from:

Interest income already subjected fo final tax (6.02) (0.0 {(0.18)

Nondeductible interest expense 4.09 0.16 0.03

Nondeductible tax deficiency payment (0.03) - 0.06

Changes in applicable income tax rates (1.14) - -

Others - net 9.01 0.01 -
Effective mcome tax 23.91% 30.08% 29.93%
Deferred Taxes
The components of the Group's net deferred tax assets and habilities are as follows:

2021 2020

Deferred tax assets:
Pension liability

21.041,784.250

B1,473.503.57]

Allowance for ECL 224,507,665 227,801,136
Other long-term employee benefiss 98.240.972 104,910,736
Contract liabilities 32,619,931 10,772,554
l.ease liabilities 29,570,900 22,706,164
Unrealized loss on financial assets at FVOCI 13,046,917 6,218,787
Dismanthing provision 11,524,362 13,462 023
Intercompany sale of intangible assets 11,250,000 18,000,000
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 8,386,408 8.213.125
Allowance for probable losses in advances 7.197.2306 8.187.320
Unamortized past service cost 6,721,348 7.862.147
NOLCO 383,792 208,058
Excess MCIT over RCIT 22,619 22,619
Accrued expenses - 30.265.904

1.485,256.400 1,932,254,144

Deferred tax liabilities:

Revaluation increment on land (610.894,710) {733.073.632)
Right-of-use assets {30,778.315) (26.460.540)
(641.673.025) (756.534,192)

PB43.583.375

R1.172,719.952

The components of deferred tax assets {habilhiies) pertaining to accounts presented under equity in the

consohdated statements of financial position are as feliows:

2021 2020
Revaluation increment on land (B6160.894,718)  (P733.073.652)
Pension liability - remeasurement loss
on retirement plan 1.501.579,229 677,677,431
Revaluation of financial assets at FVO(] 13,046,917 7.862.147
903.731.436 (47,534,074)
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The components of the subsidiaries’ deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of
NOLCO and MCIT, for which no deferred tax assets have been recognized in the Group’s consolidated
statements of financial position, are as follows:

2021 2020
NOLCO $9.465,804 210,038,762
Allowance for ECL 11,064,734 7.181.194
Alowance for inventory stock 8.899,999 6.978.287
Pension liability 3335093 3.447,119
Unamortized past service cost 970,172 577.523
Excess MCIT over RCIT 39,503 64,334
Others 78.488 102,383

£33,873,793 BIR 389.602

The unrecognized deferred tax assets from the above deductible temporary differences and carrvforward
benefits of NOLCO and MCIT amounted to B8.51 milhon and R8.56 million as at December 31, 2021
and 2020, respectively,

The deferred tax assets were not recognized as management believes that fuiure taxable income against
which the deferred tax assets can be used for these entities may not be available.

As at December 31, 2021, the Group’s MCIT is as follows:

Years Pmd/Incurred  Carrvforward Benefit Up To MCIT
2019 2022 28.875

2020 2023 50.577

2021 2024 2,670

P82.122

On September 30, 2020, the BIR 1ssued Revenue Regulations No. 25-2020 implementing Section 4(b)
of “Bavanihan to Recover As One Act” which states that the NOLCO incurred for taxable vears 2020
and 2021 can be carnied over and claimed as a deduction from gross income for the next five (3)
consecutive taxable vears immediately following the vear of such loss.

As at December 31, 2021, the Group has incurred NOLCO before taxable year 2020 which can be
claimed as deduction from the regular taxable income for the next three (3) consecutive taxable vears, as

follows;

Applications Applications
Year Availmenl i previous 0 the current  Unapplied
incurred period Amount vear/s  Expirations vear NOLCO
2018 2019 to 2021 B3I 126,035 P500.581 £I.625454 - -
2019 2020 10 2022 2,731,377 = - - 2.7931.377

B3RAT 412 P5S00.581 B2 625454 P~ B2731.377




Ag at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company has incurred NOLCO which can be claimed as
deduction from the regular taxable income for the next five (5} consecutive taxable vears pursuant to the
Bayanihan to Recover as One Act, as follows:

Applications Applicatons
Year Availment in previous in the current  Unapplied
incurred period Amount vear/s  Fxpirations vear NOLCO
2620 202110 2025 B3.174.877 B P P RS 174877
2021 2022 to 2026 3.094.716 = = = 3094716
P8.269,563 - - —  PE269.563

30. EPS Computation
The computation of basic and diluted EPS follows:

2021 2020 2019

Net income attributable to equity holders of
the Parent Company (a)

Less attributable to preferred shareholders

Net income attributable to common equity
helders of the Parent Company (b)

B7.530.114.246
2.321.867.730

P3984.584,939
1.846.897. 337

£2.618.460,706
B08.080.787

P£5.208.246.516 P4.137.687.602 PL.310,379.91%

Common shares issued at the beginning of

vear {Note 24

Treasury shares (Note 200

3,364.692,000

3.364 692,000
(3.645.000)

1.364.692.000
{3.645.000)

Linderlying shares on acquired PDRs
{Nate 20) -

Weighted average number of common shares
for basic EPS (¢}

Weighted average number of common shares

{750.000) (750.000)

3.364,692.000
3.364.692.080

3.360.207 000
3.360.297.000

3.360.297.008
3.360,297.0040

Effect of ditution - assumed conversion of

preferred shares

Reacquired preferred shares

L560.060.000

1500000000
(9% 563}

1.500,003.000
(98.563)

Weighted average number of common shares
adsusted for the effect of difution (d)

4.864.692.000

4,860, 198,437

4.560,108.437

Basic EPS (b/cy

P1.548

£1.231

P(.539

Diluted EPS (a/d}

£1.548

£1.234

PH.S3Y

L

. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of
these financial instruments includes raising financing for the Group's operations and managing
identified financial risks. The Group has other financial assets and Habilities such as trade and other
receivables, refundable deposits, trade pavables and other current habilities (excluding payable 1o
government agencies, customers’ deposits, contract liabilines, and advances from customers). short-
term icans, obligations for program and other rights, dividends payable, other long-term employee
benefits and lease habihities, which arise directly from its operations, and financial assets at FVOCE,
The main risks arising from the use of financial instrumenss are liquidity nisk, foreign currency
exchange risk and credit nisk. The Group 1s not exposed to mterest rate risk as most of its financial
assets and financial liabilities have fixed rates.

The BOD reviews and approves the Group’s objectives and policies.
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Ligquidiry Risk. The Group is exposed to the possibility that adverse changes in the business

environment and/or its operations would result in substantially higher working capital requirements and

subsequently pose difficulty in financing the additional working capital.

The Group manages Lquidity 11

sk by using its cash and cash equivalents from operations {0 meet its

shor{-term liqdity needs. The Group likewise regularly evaluates other financing instruments and
arrangements to broaden the Group’s range of financing sources.

The tables below summarize the matarity profile of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities
based on contractual undiscounted payments as at December 31;

2021
Less than More than
On Demand 3 Months 3 to 12 Months F vear Total
Financial assets at amortized cost:
Cash and cash equivalenis B2919.451.027  P1.874,115.127 - B R4793.566,154
Trade receivables:
Television and radio
airtime 3.096,597.816 4,230.324.198 - - 7.326,922.014
Subscriptions 57.467.274 158,484,088 215,951,362
Others R1.337.286 36.185.002 - 17,522,288
Nontrade receivables:
Advanees 1o officers and
emplovees 1,923,767 7,439,509 - 9.363.276
Others 32,095,656 62.690.411 - 114,786.067
Refundable deposits™® - - 22,165,836 22,165,830
Financial assets at FVOC] - - - Li6.711.276 116,711,276
6.208.872.826 6,369.238.335 138.877.112  12.716,988.273
Loans and borrowings:
Trade pavables and other
carrent labilities** 3RS 382,040 666.108.361 28,078,727 - 1.019.569.098
Shott-termn loang*** 739.485.500 - 730,485 500
Obligations for progran: and
other rights - 143,341,523 69,237,163 - 212,578,686
i.case liabilities*** - 17475682 101,910,220 119.385.902
Dividends pavable 39.589.204 - - 39.589.204
424.971.214 1.488,935.384 £14.791.572 101,916,220 2,130,608.390
Liquidity Portion (Gapi P5783.901.612 P4,886,302.951 (PEI4.791.57) P36,966.892 P10,586,374,883
*included under " Ciher noncurrent assets” qeeount in the consolidated suement of financial position fsee Note 16,
**Lxcluding payable w government agencigs, contract habifities and customer deposits amounting 1o #1501 08 million.
F L3048 miliion and B46.03 million. respectivelv {3ee Note 17)
*ERGrosy conmraciual pevmenis
2020
Less than Meore than
Om Dernand 3 Months 350 12 Months i vear Total
Fmancial assets at amorniized cost:
Cash and cash equivalents P2.8O2.545.281 R322271.983 P P RP32I481T 204
Trade receivables;
Television and radio
arrfime 24550964077 7478640, 704 0634 604841
Subscriptions 162802287 84008769 - 246 901 056
Others 82.251.529 46624618 128,876,147
Nontrade receivables:
Advances (o officers
and emplovees 1.636.162 5.230.704 - 6.866.866
Others 84.639 593 64.649.162 - 144 288 783
Refundable depasits™ - - - 21427422 21427422
Financial assets at FVOC] = - 192,132,088 192.132.088
S.676.838.924 R.O01.316.030 - 213550510 13.894 914 469

(Forward;



2020
Less than More than
On Demand 3 Months 3 ro 12 Months 1 year Toral
Loans and borrowings:
Trade payvables and other
current habilities** 541 916369 648035317 16.964 424 1206916110
Short-term Joans*** - 720,741,190 - 720,741,190
Obiigations for program and
other rights 73.369.390 162812738 - 176,182,128
fease habilities®** - 4.208.629 12.032.002 83.333.102 G99 573.733
Dividends Pavabie 19.804.437 - - 19,894 437
361,810,806 1.446.354.526 131809164 83.333.102 2.223.307.398
Liguidity Portion ¢Gap POIIS028.123  £6.355 161,504  (RPIZLROV. 164 PI30236408 PB11671.60687]

*included wider “Orher noncuwrrent assels " accownt in the consolidared statement of financial position (see Nore T6),

**Exeltuding payable w government agencies. contract labilities and customer deposits amounting 1o B979.42 million.
#2728 millhon and B335 million, respectively (see Nore 17,

*ERGross contractual pavments,

Foreign Cuwrrency Exchange Risk. Foreign currency exchange risk is the risk that the fair value of
tuture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange risk results from certain business
transactions denominated mn foreign currencies. 1t is the Group’s policy to ensure that capabilities exist
for active but conservative management of its foreign currency exchange risk,

The Group’s foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and Habilities are as follows:

2021 2020
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $15.738,444 PR02.644.894 314,428,000 BHOZ BI2.539
C%300,131 11,961,418 C81.515.837 56,692,289
Trade receivables $3.370,321 171.883.009 $4.2935 851 200,286,757
83,988,075 158,940,751 C51,392.382 52,078,098
S$141.598 5,317.676 S$I13,726 4,107,773
AS144.000 5.300.078 A%36,854 341474
DH132.516 1,832,040 DHS2.170 682387
BL.157.879.866 P1.OI4.018319

Liabilities
Short-term foans $14.5300,000 R739.485 500 $15.000.000 BT20.345 000
Trade payabies $130,058 6.632.818 $2.891.699 138850374
€90.100 5.181.804 €11.670 684,924
58212 7.962 S5
Obligations for program and other rights $2.933.261 149,593,378 §2.892 613 138,903 262
PO00.90 . 462 PUOE_TOD 56()
F256.978.404 B132235 759

in translating the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabikities mio Philippine peso
amounts, the exchange rate used were P51.00 to USEL.00 and £48.02 1o US$1.00. the Philippine peso to
U.S. dollar exchange rate, as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The exchange raie for
Philippine peso to Canadian dollar was £39.85 1o CADS1.00 as at December 31. 2021. The peso
equivalents for the Smgaporean Dollar, Australian Dollar, Dirham and Euro are 837,55, 36,81, P13.83,
and B57.51 respectively as at December 31, 2021
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The following table demonstraies the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the exchange rates,
with all other variables heid censtant, of the Group’s income before income tax from reporting period up
to next reporting period (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). There is no
impact on the Group's equitv other than those already affecting profit or loss.

Appreciation’
(Depreciation)

of Peso UsD CAD SGD ALD AED B4R Total
2021 84,56 B5.547.881 £2.031.554 ¥70,799 72,080 P66,.258 P11.263 BR.G98, 734
(6.50) (5.847.881)  (PLO3LSS (T0.799) (RT2.060 (PE6.258) (10263} (R.B99.754)
SEALS5T6.199,
2620 it PLO3G.SM (P14343109 (P56.863 F15A2T 26085 P5.83s s
i0.501 £1.036.534) 1,434,109 56861 15427 26088 (5.835) (513U

Credir Risk. Credit risk. or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controlied by the application of credit
approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. It is the Group’s policy 1o enter inio transactions with a
diversity of creditworthy parties to mitigate any significant concentration of credit risk.

The Group ensures that sales of products and services are made to customers with appropriate credi
history. The Group has an internal mechanism to menifor the granting of credit and management of
credit exposures. The Group has made provisions, where necessary, {or potential kosses on credits
extended. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amount of the instruments. The Group does not require any collateral for
its financial assets, thus, maximum exposure to credit risk is equail to the carrving value of the financial
instruments.

The table below shows the maximum exposure fo credit risk for the components of the consolidated
financial position as at December 31:

2021 2024
Financial assers at amortized cost:
Cash and cash equivalents® P4,505.373.504 P2EST.264.071
Trade receivables:
Television and radio atrtime 7326922014 9,934 604,841
Subscriptions 215.951.362 246,901,056
Others 117,522,288 128.876.147
Nontrade receivables:
Advances to officers and employees 1,923,767 6.860.866
Others 52095656 140,288,783
Refundable deposite*™ 22,165,836 21,427,422
12,241,954,427 13.045.229 188
Financial assets at FVOC!E 116,711,276 192,132 088

#12.358.665,703 P13.237.361.276

*Excheding cash on hand wpounting 10 £262.86 pullion and #335.24 million as ar December 3), 2021 and 2000, respectivedy:
**nciuded under “Other noncurrent assets  geeounr in the consolidared statements of financial position (see Note 16)

The maxtmum exposure for cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) is the carrying amount
less insured amount by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation equivaient to the actual cash
balance to a maximum of #0.50 million per depositor per bani. The maximim exposure of rrade and
non-trade receivables and refundable deposits is equal to its carrying amount.
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Credit quality of Financial Assets. Other than Trade Receivables

The financial asseis of the Group are grouped according to stage whose description is explained as
follows:

Stage 1 - Those that are considered current and up to 120 past due and based on change in rating
delinquencies and payment history, do not demonstrate significant increase in credit risk.

Stage 2 - Those that, based on change in rating, delinquencies and payment history, demonstrate
significant increase in credif risk, and/or are considered more than 120 to 360 days past due but does not
demonsirate objective evidence of impairment as of reporting date.

Stage 3 - Those that are considered in default or demonstrate objective evidence of impairment as of
reporting date.

The credit quality of the Group’s financial assets are as follows:

2021
ECIL Staging
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3
i2-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total

Financial assets at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents* £4.305,373.504 £ B B4.305.373.504
Nontrade receivabies:
Advances to officers and

emplovees 1,923,767 - - 1.923.767

Others 52,095,636 - - 52,095,656
Refundabie deposits** 22,165,836 - - 22.165,836
P4,581.558,763 P P-4 581,558.763

*Exchiding cash o hand omounting (o F262.80 milfion as ar December 35 2021

*7 eluded wider “Qrher noncurrend assets” accownt in e consolidited company sistement of fngacial posuion.

2020
ECL Stagmg
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 2
[ 2-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime FCL Tatal

Financial assets at amoriized cost
Clash and cash equivalents® P2 38726407 P P P2 337264 071
Nonirade receivables:
Advances to officers and

employees 6.566.866 - - 6.866.866

Others 49288 783 - 146 288 785
Refundable deposits™ 21427422 - 21427422
£2.734.847, 144 P B B2 734,847,144

24 mitlion as ar December 31, 2126
Taceoun) in the consolidared compone siaemens af financiad poyion.

®Exchiding cash on hand amotoming 1o B3
*F fnofuded under “Cihier noncurrens asser

Credit Quality of Trade Receivables

An impairment analysis 1s performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segment with similar logs patterns (i.e, by customer type). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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Set out below 1s the information about the credit risk exposure of the Group’s trade receivables using
provision matrix:

202t
Davs pass due
9% days gad
Current 0-30 davs 31-60 days 6190 days ahove Torud
Expected credit oss rate % 4% 3% 19%, 34%
Estimated wotal gross cacrving
amaunt at default £4.424,993.288 BSHLTTE.57T £840.804.692 P178.145,044 #2,305,769.456 BR.569.491.057
fxpected credir loss 39,815,435 31.489.887 24,905,743 33.419,150 TT9.465.179 90%.093,3%4
2024
[3avs past doe
1 davs and
Current 0-30 davs 3160 davs 6150 davs ahove Tomal
Expecied credit loss rate 1% 4% % % 208
Estimated wtal gross carrving
amownt at defanlt PL609 364 151 PASOLE2T.2TS B40% D 18Y PR60I66.377 BlLOT6.000.338
Expected credit ioss 43 863938 2R309155 43194870 41105684 To6H 3518514

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it. in the light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, pay off existing debis, refurn capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Parent Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for each of the three vears ended
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019,

The Group monitors its capital gearing by measuring the ratio of inferest-bearing loan to total equity.
The Group’s interest-bearing loans, which are the short-term loans, amounsed to 2739.49 million and
B720.35 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The Group's total equity attributable
1o equity holders of the Parent Company as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted 1o

£14,469.92 million and B12.809.06 million, respectively.

2. Fair Value Measurement

The table below presents the carryving values and fair values of the Group’s assets and liabiliries. by
category and by class. as at December 31:

201
Fair Value
Significant
Quoted Prices in Significant Linobservabie
Active Markets Observable Input Inputs
Carrving Value {Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
ASSCLS
Assets Measured ar Fair Value
{.and at revalued amount 22,045,207.014 B - B2945.297.014
Financial assets at FVOCI 116,711,276 - 13,371.842 103,339,434
Assers for which Fair Values are
Diselosed
Investment properties 33,487,447 - - 203,942,548
Fmancial assets at amortized cost -
Refundabie deposits” 22,165,836 - - 17.499.532
£3.117.661.573 £ R13,371.842  P1.270,638,528

*inciuded under "Oriigr voncurrent assers ' account in the consolidaied siaiement of financial position isee Note 16).
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2020
Fair Value
Significant
Quoted Prices in Significant Unobservable
Acnve Markers  Observable Input Inputs
Carrving Value {Level ) {Level 2) {lLevel 3)

Assets
Assets Measured ar Fair Value
Land at revalued amount PIRO3.196.184 B P P2R03,196.184
Financial assets at FVOC] 192,132,084 - 12971842 179,160,246
Assets for whick Fair Valees are

Disclosed
Investment properties 34869834 - 203.902.548
Financial assets at amortized cost -

Refundable deposits™ 21427422 — 17,422,032

P3.O51.625.528 P PI2OT7] R42 B3 203.681.010

*ncluded under "Other noncurvens assers” account in the consolidared starement of financial position (see Now 16}

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the fair value of equity instrumenis in a listed entity is classified
under Level 3 due to the investee Company’s suspension of trading in the market.

The fair values of equity instruments in listed and non-listed companies classified under Level 3 were
determined through asset-based approach. Asset-based approach is based on the value of all the
tangible and intangible assets and liabilifies of the investee Compaty.

Presented below are the significant unobservable inputs used in the net asset valuations of the Group's
financiai assets in 2021 and 202(;

Range
Description Unobservable inputs 2021 2020
Listed equify instrament:
Casinos and gaming indusiry Discount for lack of marketabifity HYe-30%, 10%-30%
Discount for lack of control 1H0%-30% 1084 30%
Non-hsted equity instruments:
Media and entertainment Discount for lack of marketabifity 1494-30%%, H0%4-30%
mndusiry
Discount for Jack of control 10%-30% 10%:-30%

An increase (decrease) in the significant unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the equity
investments will increase (decrease) the fair value of the equity investments.

Movements in the famr value of equity investments classified under Level 3 are as follows:

2021 2020
Balance at beginning of vear £179.160.246 8227 508,061
Fair value adjustment recognized under “Net
unrealized gain (loss) on financial assets at
FYOCT” (75.820.812) {48.347.81%)
Balance at end of vear 103,339,434 B179,160.246
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Fair Value Determination
The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each asset and Hability for
which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Trade and Other Receivables
The carrving values of cash and cash equivalents and trade and nontrade receivables approximate their
fair values primarily due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

Refundable Deposits
The fair value of refundable deposits is based on the present value of the future discounted cash flows.
Discount rates used range from 3.26% to 4.44% in 2021 and 2020.

Financial assets at FVOCI

The Group’s investments i ¢lub shares were based on prices readily available from brokers and other
regulatory agencies as at reporting date. The fair values of equity investments in listed and non-listed
companies have been esfimated using the net asset value model. The valuation using adjusted net assef
approach requires the management to measure the fair value of the individual assets and liabilities
recognized in an investee's statement of financial position as well as the fair value of any unrecognized
assets and liabilities at the measurement date.

Investment Properties and Land ar Revalued Amount

The valuation for investment properties and fand at revalued amount was derived through market data
approach based upon prices paid in actual market transactions. This approach relies on the comparison
of recent sale transactions or offerings of similar properties which have occurred and/or offered with
close proximity to the subject property adjusted based on certain elements of comparison (e.g. market
conditions, location, physical condition and amenities}. Significant unobservable valuation input in
determining the fair value of investment properties includes adjusted price per square meter that ranges
from £1,400 to P117.000. On the other hand, significant unobservable vatuation input in determining
fair vatue of land at revalued amount includes adjusted price per square meter that ranges from 2200 o
£97.,000.

Significant increases {decreases) in estimated price per square meter would result in a significantly
higher {lower) fair value of the properties.

Trade Pavables and Other Cwrrent Liabilities (excluding Pavable to Government Agencies and
Advances from Customers), Short-tevm Loans, Obligations for Program and Other Righis and
Dividends Pavable

The carrying values of trade pavables and other current liabilities, short-term loans, current portion of
obligations for program and other rights and dividends payabie approximate their fair values due to the
refattvely short-term maturity of these financial instruments,

Lease liabilities

The fair value is based on the discounted value of future cash flows using the applicabie rates for similar
types of loans plus the appiicable credit spread. Discount rates used ranged from 0.99% to 4.89% in
20271 and 1.59% to 3.57% in 2020
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33. Changes in Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities
Janoary 1, December 31,
021 Additiens Pavmenis Others” 2021
Shori-term loans £720.345, (00 B4 479,150,000 (#4,542,575.0003 BR2.565,500 P739.485.500
lease Habilities 76.856.072 60.877.091 {26.744,140% 8.396.879 119.385.902
itvidends pavable 19.894,437 6,568,917.88¢ {6,54%,223,122) - 39.589.204
Accrued interest expense™™ 756,363 38.086.089 (38.330.656) - 511,796
Towal lisbilities fom financing
achivities #817.851,872 P11.147.031.069 {11.156.872.91%) £60.962.379 B848.072.40)2
*Oithers perain to revaduation of forelgn currenrcy denominated loans, and aecretion of interest of lease labilities.
**ncluded under “Accounts pavable and other current labiliies ” account in the consolidated statement of financial position isee Nawe 17}
January |, December 3,
2024 Addiions Pavments Others* 2019
Short-term loans B400,000,006 BOR4, 340,000 (PO R93.000) {FI2100.000) BII0345.000
[Lease Habilizies 135,788,113 - 21,762,363} (7,169,680 76,856,072
Dividends pavable 18,7734 60% 1475009531 147474000y - 19894437
Accrued interest expense™™ [466.667 12 146,604 {12.856998) 736363
Total labilivies from financmg
activiries B373 G88 700 F2.472,396 225 (2, 151.263.463) (#20 264 680) PRI ESTR72
*Oihers pertain w reveluation of toreign currency denominated loans. and aceretion of interest and pre-ierminarion of lease labilities.
**included under " Accownts pavable and other current liabilines” aceount in the consolidaied statement of financial position (see Note 17)
34. Events after the Reporting Period

On March 25, 2022, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the dectaration and distribution of cash
drvidends amounting to B1.45 per share totaling £7.053.80 million to ali stockhoiders of record as at
April 25, 2022 and will be paid on May 17, 2022,



GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Annex 68 - J

A. Fmancial Assets Attached

B. Amounts Receivable from Directors. Officers, Emplovees. Related Paries  Not applicable
and Principat Stockholders {Other than Related Parties)

C. Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during Aftached
the Consolidation of Financal Statements

D. Long-term Debt Not applicable
E. Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-term Loans from Related Not applicable
Companies)
F. Guarantees of Securities of Other lssuers Not appiicabie
G. Capital Stock Attached
Additional Components
1) Reconcilation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration Attached

ii) Map of Relationships of the Companies within the Group Attached




GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-J

BECEMBER 31, 2021

Schedule A. Financial Assets

Name of Issuing Entity and

Number of
Shares or
Principal

Amounts of

Amount Shown

in the Statements

of Financial

Value Based on

Market Guotation

at end of

Income Received

Association of Each Issue Bonds and Notes Position  Reporting Period and Accrued
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand P P262.857.804 - P
Cash in banks 2.656.593,223 i.068.032
Peso Placements:
Abacus Capital & Investment
Comporation 1533.204.647 7.400 714
Amalgamated Investment
Bancorporation 7.948.642 87.149
Bank of the Philippine Islands 300.212.253 308,037
Bank of Commerce B.157.427 -
Charter Ping An - 6.160.687 -
CTBC Bank - 50.069.602 536,224
Land Bank of the Philippines 251.654.554 - 1.917.763
Malavan Bank - 150.742.454 1.031.768
Philippine Business Bank 2.140.262 13.717
Philippine Bank of
Communications 10.647.532 43.517
Philippine National Bank 100,390,714 522201
Unicapital, Inc. 31.367.624 666,203
Linited Coconut Planters Bank - 360,937,333 - 1.136.700
Union Bank of the Philippines 500,451,391 633.302
Total Placements - 1874115127 - 14,326,385
B P4.793,560,154 £ £16,235.317
!
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive income
IP E Games Ventures. Inc. 13.000,000.600 P23,775.258 P fi
Unicapital. Inc. TTE.504 74295716
Mabuhay Philippine Sazellite 403 666 244 926
Optima Studio 75,600 4.805.609 -
Ayvaia Alabang Country Ciub - A 1 6,000.000 6,000,000
Bagwo Country Club 3.000.000 3.000.000 -
Metropolitan Club (Megroclub) A 7 1.356.000 1,350,000 -
Manila Southwoods A I 1.185.000 1.185.600
Camp John Hay Golf Club ] 250.000 250.600
Reefpoint Picture 216.925 -
Tagaytay Country Club 1 1486842 1.486,842 -
Rovale Tagaytay I 100,000 100.000 -
Others - 1,000
P116.711.276 P13.371.842 P
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Schedule D. Long-Term Pebt

December 31, 2021
Amount  Amount shown under caption Amount shown under
Title of Issue and Tvpe Authorized  “Current portion of fong term  caption “Long term debt”
of Obligation by Indenture  debt” in related balance sheet in related balance sheet

Not Applicable: The Group has no long-term debt as at December 31, 2021,

Schedule E. Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Terms from Related Companies)
December 31, 2021

Balance, ; Balance,
Name January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021

Not Applicable: The Group has no noncurrent indebtedness 1o a related party as at
December 31, 2021.

Schedule ¥. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
December 31, 2021

Name of Issuing Entity of Title of {ssue of  Total Amount Amount Owned
Securities Guaranteed by Each Class of Guaranteed by Person for
the Company for which Securities and which the Nature of
this statement is filed Cuaranteed Outstanding  Statement is Filed  Guarantee

Not Applicable: The Group has no guarantees of securities of other issuers as at
December 31, 2021.

Schedule . Capital Stock
Pecember 31, 2021

Number of
Number of shares  shares

issued and reserved for
outstanding as options,
shown under WaITants. Directors,
Number of related statements  conversion  Number of officers,
Title of shares of financial and other shares held by and
155U authorized pOSifon caplion rights related parties  emplovees  Others
Common 5.006,000,000  3.364.692.000 N/A 2968.602.673  20.235355 3758331972

Preferred 7.300.000.000  7.500,000.000 N/A 7.489.630.392 27.204 10342314




GMA NETWORK, INC.

RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE
FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Unappropriated retained earnings, beginning of the vear
Less: Non-actual/unrealized income
Deferred tax assets recognized in profit or loss

P7,150,714,193

(664,041.122)

Unappropriated retained earnings, as adjusted to available
for dividend distribution, beginning of the vear

6.486.673,07]

Add: Net income actually eamed/realized during the period

Net income of the Parent Company ciosed to Retained Eamnings
Less: Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax

Provision for deferred income tax

Unrealized foreign exchange gain

7,527,323.467

{30.460.274)
(78,173.432)

Net income actuaily earned/realized during the vear

7.418.689.761

Less:
Dividends declaration during the vear

(6,561,492.890)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration, Ending

P7,343,869.942




GMA NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

Financial Ratios Formula 2021 2020
Current/liquidity ratio Current assets over current liabilities 3.42:1 2.89:1
Total current assets 16.337.871.141
Divided by:
Total current liabilites 4,782.043.634
Current ratio 342
Acid Test Ratio Quick assets ever current liabilities 3.18:1 2.8511
Total current assets 16.337.871.141
Less:
Inventery 1137425573
Other current assets 1,578,013
15.198,867.555
Bivided by:
Total current liabilites 4.782,043.634
Acid test ratio 3R
Solvency ratio Net income plus nen-cash expenses over tetal liabilities 0.99:1 0.69:1
Net income 7.569.146,281
Add:
Non-cash expenses 1.807,404.558
Total 9.376.550,839
Divided hy:
Total Hahilties 9,504,724 840
Solvency ratio 0,09
Asset-to-equity ratio Total asset over total equity 1.65:1 1.86:1
Total assets 24.073.725.073
Divided bv:
Total equity 14.571.000.233
Asset-to-equity ratio 1.63
Debt-to-equity ratio Shert-term loans aver total equity 8.05:1 0.06:1

Total shori-term loans
Divided byv:
Total equity

739485500

14.571.000.233

Assel-to-equity rafio

0.05




Financial Ratios Formula 2021 2020

Net debt to eguity ratio fnterest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash {6.283:1 {0.193:1
equivalents over tofal eguity

Total short-term loans 739.485.500
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents 4.7793.566,154
{4.054.080.654)
Divided by:
Total equity 14.571.000,233
Net debi-te-equity ratio (G.28)
Interest rate coverage Earnings before inferest, tax over interest expense 204.95:1  418.5321
ratio
Net income 7.569.146.281
Add:
inferest 48,692,493
Tax 2.378.049517
Less:
Interest income (16,235317)
9.979.652.974
Divided by~
Interest 48,602,493
Interest rate coverage ratio 204.95
Gross profit margin Gross profit over net revenues 76.42% 79.67%
Gross profit 17.135.632.749
Divided by:
Net revenue 22.450,323.3497
Gross profit margin T4.42%
Net income margin Net income over net revenues 33.72% 31.07%
Net income 7.560,146.281
Divided by:
Net revenue 22.450.323.397
Net imcome margin 33.72%
Return on equity Net income over average total stockhelder’s egnity 55.14% 53.319%
Net income 7.569.146.281
Divided by:
Average equity 13.726,207.427

Return on equity 55.14%




Financial Ratios Formuia 20621 2020
Return on assets Net income over average total assets 31.53% 29.82%
Net income 7.569.146.281
Divided by:

Average asset

24,007.497.272

Retum on asset

31.53%
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